City Council Meeting
Agenda of Business
August 22, 2022
The Lord’s Prayer
Pledge of Allegiance to the flag
A.

Roll call

B.

Approval of minutes dated August 8, 2022.

C.

Communications, reports, and resolutions
1. Resolution No. 2022-107 – Introduced by Council – A Resolution authorizing
the Clerk of Council to act as the designated representative of the members of
the Zanesville City Council for purposes of required Public Records Training.
(First Reading)
2. Resolution No. 2022-121 – Introduced by Council – A Resolution declaring
“Beggar’s Night”/”Trick or Treat” for the City of Zanesville. (First Reading)

D.

Proposed ordinances
1. Ordinance No. 2022-108 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance
authorizing the City of Zanesville to use the standard allowance for the Local
Fiscal Recovery Fund as authorized by the American Rescue Plan Act. (First
Reading)
2. Ordinance No. 2022-109 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance approving
and accepting the Opioid Settlement and declaring an emergency.
(Emergency or First Reading)
3. Ordinance No. 2022-110 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance approving
the OneOhio Region 12 governance structure under the OneOhio
Memorandum of Understanding, and declaring an emergency. (Emergency or
First Reading)
4. Ordinance No. 2022-111 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance
authorizing the assessment of liens against certain properties for demolition
and clearance activities, and declaring an emergency. (Emergency or First
Reading)

5. Ordinance No. 2022-112 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance
authorizing the Public Service Director to enter into a professional services
contract with Gossman Group for the Gateway District Land Uses and Street
Scape Design. (First Reading)
6. Ordinance No. 2022-113 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance amending
Ordinance 22-94 that authorized the assessment of liens against certain
properties with delinquent bills, and declaring an emergency. (Emergency or
First Reading)
7. Ordinance No. 2022-114 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance amending
appropriation Ordinance No. 2022-40 and declaring an emergency.
(Emergency or First Reading)
8. Ordinance No. 2022-115 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance consenting
to an Expedited Type Two Annexation Petition and declaring an emergency
(Emergency or First Reading)
9. Ordinance No. 2022-116 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance
designating the municipal services to be provided to and the zoning
classification of annexed property and declaring an emergency. (Emergency
or First Reading)
10. Ordinance No. 2022-117 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance consenting
to an expedited type two annexation petition and declaring an emergency.
(Emergency or First Reading)
11. Ordinance No. 2022-118 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance
designating the municipal services to be provided to and the zoning
classification of annexed property and declaring an emergency. (Emergency
or First Reading)
12. Ordinance No. 2022-119 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance
Authorizing the proper city officials to execute a pre-annexation agreement
with Zanesville (Newark) DG LLC. (First Reading)
13. Ordinance No. 2022-120 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance
authorizing the expenditure of American Rescue Plan Act Funding. (First
Reading)
14. Ordinance No. 2022-122 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance
authorizing the proper city official to advertise for bids and enter into contracts
for cleaning, rehabilitation, and maintenance of potable water supply wells
#16 and #18. (First Reading)

E.

Ordinances for action
1. Ordinance No. 2022-101–Introduced by Council – An Ordinance allowing a
moral claim. (Second Reading)
2. Ordinance No. 2022-103- Introduced by Council – An Ordinance authorizing
the Proper City Official to enter into a Fuel Purchase Agreement with CoAlliance Energy for the purchase of fuel for various departments of the City.
(Second Reading)
3. Ordinance No. 2022-104- Introduced by Council – An Ordinance to amend and
revise Ordinance 2022-81. (Second Reading)
4. Ordinance No. 2022-97 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance authorizing
the Public Service Director to enter into a professional contract with OHM
Advisors for final design and construction management of the Market Street
Improvements. (Third Reading)

F.

Traffic orders
No Traffic Orders were filed for this meeting.

G.

Miscellaneous and unfinished business

H.

Private petitions and communications
No Non-agenda item petitions were filed

The next regular meeting is scheduled for September 12, 2022.

This meeting is open to the public who may attend in person or attend by phone or
Internet using the information below.
Phone 1-844-621-3956 US Toll Free or 1-415-655-0001 US Toll
Use Access Code: 126 750 8098 #
Online with WebEx- Enter zanesvillecity.webex.com in web browser. Enter Meeting
Information- 126 750 8098

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2022
PUBLIC HEARING
A Public Hearing was held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, August 8, 2022, in the City of
Zanesville's Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio and Council
President Daniel Vincent called the public hearing to order at 6:30 p.m. to hear a
request to amend and revise the zoning map and make permanent zoning in the City of
Zanesville, Ohio. This request is to rezone parcel 83-24-02-13-000 from 1-1 to RS-5.
With that, I'll turn it over to Mr. Matt Schley.
Present at this hearing were: Council Members- Daniel Vincent, Cody Pettit, Joey
Osborn, Rob Sharrer, Mark Baker, Steve Foreman, Jan Bradshaw, Todd Ware, Brad
Wolfe, Mayor Don Mason, CD Director Matthew Schley, Public Service Director Scott
Brown, Clerk of Coundl Susan Culbertson, and Clerk of Council in training Billie Corns.
Matthew Schley: Thank you, Mr. President. This parcel is contiguous to an RS-5
neighborhood. It is platted as a residential lot. It went before the Planning Commission.
It passed unanimously and has a recommendation for approval. It went through the
Community Development Committee at our last meeting. That was also recommended.
Mr. Vincent: We're not on. Somebody know how to turn that on? Scott, do you know
how to get that started?
The WebEx online connection was checked at this time by Scott Brown.
Scott Brown: I believe we're live.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, and we do have someone on here then? So, if you would start over
again, sir, sorry.
Matthew Schley: Yes, so this rezoning request is rezoning a parcel from 1-1 Industrial to
RS-5 High Density Single Family. The property is contiguous to an RS-5 district. It's
also platted in a residential standard. It is also adjacent to Brockway Glass. It is
currently undeveloped. The Community Improvement Corporation does own the
property and intends to utilize the property to encourage additional housing. This
request went through the Planning Commission, and it passed unanimously. It also
went through the Community Development Committee, and it was recommended to
Council with passage. We received no complaints; nobody spoke for or against this
action from the public. Multiple notices were sent; no comments were received back.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, thank you, Mr. Schley. Any questions from Council? Okay, no
questions from Council. With that, we have someone on the line here, Mary Behanna.
Did you want to speak for or against this? If so, unmute. Hold on a second.
Scott Brown: She might be on the phone, and that may have been the delay of the
phone call.
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Mr. Vincent: Okay. Mary Behanna, if you're on the phone, did you want to speak for or
against this rezoning? Is there anyone there?
Scott Brown: I know from what I can tell, it looks like it's working.
Mr. Vincent: You think it's working? Okay. Anyone to speak for or against this, public?
Last call, anyone to speak for or against? Okay, with that, we'll call this public hearing to
a close. Council will begin at 7:00.

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING - MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2022

The Zanesville City Council met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, August 8,
2022, in the City Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio.
Mr. Vincent led those present in the Lord's Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance to the
Flag.
The following members of Council answered roll call: Mrs. Osborn, Mr. Foreman, Mr.
Roberts, Mr. Sharrer, Mr. Baker, Mr. Wolfe, Mr. Ware, Miss Bradshaw, Mr. Pettit, and
Mr. Vincent.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mrs. Osborn moved to approve the minutes of July 25, 2022, and the Special Meeting
minutes dated July 29, 2022 as written, seconded by Mr. Pettit. A voice vote was taken
with all being in favor. None were opposed. Motion carries.
COMMUNICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RESOLUTIONS
Communication from Kade Haddox, Budget & Finance Director - The Local
Government Revenue FY 2023 as Certified by the Muskingum County Auditor's Office.

Miss Bradshaw moved for to receive, seconded by Mrs. Osborn.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of receiving, signify by
saying aye. Those opposed nay.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None were opposed. Motion carries.
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PROPOSED ORDINANCES
Ordinance No. 2022-101-lntroduced by Council -An Ordinance allowing a moral claim.

Mr. Roberts moved for first reading, and it was seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Vincent: Mr. Zangmeister was here earlier and spoke at the Public Service
Committee meeting and shared some information. He was invited back if he wants to
comment in the future. We are at first reading, so all in favor of first reading signify by
saying aye. Those opposed nay.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor of first reading. None were opposed.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2022-102-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance authorizing the proper
city official to advertise for bids for the Francis Street Ditch Improvements Project, enter
into a contract with the lowest and best bidder, and declaring an emergency.

Mr. Vincent: A motion to waive or first reading?
Mr. Roberts moved to waive the readings, and it was seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there discussion on waiving?
Mr. Roberts: Mr. President, this legislation was reviewed by the Public Service
Committee earlier tonight and was recommended to pass as an emergency.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mr. Roberts. Anything else from Council on waiving?
Mr. Vincent: We will have roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
Roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
9Ayes
0 Nays
O Absent
Motion carries.
Mr. Pettit moved for passage, seconded by Mrs. Osborn.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we'll have roll call vote for passage.
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Roll call vote for passage.
9Ayes
O Nays
0 Absent
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2022-103-lntroduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the proper
city official to enter into a fuel purchase agreement with Co-Alliance Energy for the
purchase of fuel for various departments of the City.

Mr. Vincent: We are at first reading.
Miss Bradshaw moved for first reading, and it was seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Roberts: Mr. President, this ordinance was also discussed earlier tonight at Public
Service and was recommended for passage.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, sir. Is there any other discussion? We are at first reading.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor of first reading. None were opposed.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2022-104-lntroduced by Council - An Ordinance to amend and revise
Ordinance 2022-81 .

Miss Bradshaw moved for first reading, and it was seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? This is just to correct figures at the Auditor's
request. We are at first reading so all in favor of first reading signify by saying aye.
Those opposed nay.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor of first reading. None were opposed.
Motion carries.
Mr. Vincent: And with that, I probably should've asked this before, is there any urgency
on this, to get this passed, to pay someone?
Matt Schley: No, the purchase order has been put in place; this was a request of the
Auditor's for paperwork's sake.
Mr. Vincent: Alright - didn't want to cause any problems. Thank you.
Ordinance No. 2022-105-lntroduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the proper
city officials to waive payment of the stormwater permit fees associated with the review
and permitting of a Muskingum County Fair Board - Fairground Improvement Project.
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Mr. Vincent: We are at first reading .
Mrs. Osborn moved for first reading, and it was seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Roberts: Mr. President, this also was discussed at Public Service earlier tonight
and was recommended for approval.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mr. Roberts. Is there any concerns with getting this, something
opened up to prevent flooding on this one? Does this need moved along?
Scott Brown: No, to be honest, we issued the permit. If this Council's pleasure is to
waive, great. If Council says no, then we'll collect later. The permit has been issued.
Mr. Vincent: Requesting to waive?
Scott Brown: Yes.
Mrs. Osborn moved to waive the readings, and it was seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion of waiving? Hearing none, we will have roll call
vote for waiving the readings.
Roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
9Ayes
0 Nays
0 Absent
Motion carries.
Mr. Vincent: Motion to waive carries. Now we need a motion for passage.
Mrs. Osborn moved for passage, and it was seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? We'll have a roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
9Ayes
0 Nays
0 Absent
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2022•106- lntroduced by Council- An Ordinance appointing the Clerk of
Council and declaring an emergency.

Mr. Vincent: Motion to waive or at first reading.
Mr. Roberts moved to waive the readings, and it was seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
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Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on waiving? Hearing none, we'll have roll call vote
for waiving of the readings.
Roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
9Ayes
0 Nays
0 Absent
Motion carries.
Mr. Vincent: Motion to waive carries. Now we need a motion for passage.
Mrs. Osborn moved for passage, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we'll have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
9Ayes
0 Nays
0 Absent
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
ORDINANCES FOR ACTION
Ordinance No. 2022-97 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing the Public
Service Director to enter into a professional contract with OHM Advisors for final design
and construction management of the Market Street Improvements. (Second Reading)

Mr. Vincent: We are at second reading.
Miss Bradshaw moved for second reading, seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of second reading
signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor of second reading. None were opposed.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2022-92 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing the Public
Service Director to enter into an Engineering Services Contract with Verdantas for the
Water Treatment Plant Filter Rehabilitation Project. (Third Reading)

Mr. Vincent: We are at third reading.
Miss Bradshaw moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Mrs. Osborn.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we'll have roll call vote for passage.
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Roll call vote for passage.
9Ayes
0 Nays
0 Absent
Motion is approved. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2022-93- Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing the Public
Service Director to advertise for bids and enter into contracts for Water Treatment Plant
Filter Rehabilitation Project. {Third Reading)
Mr. Vincent: We are at third reading.
Mr. Roberts moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Mr. Foreman.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we'll have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
9Ayes
0 Nays
0 Absent
Motion is approved. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2022-87 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance to amend and revise
the zoning map and make permanent zoning in the City of Zanesville, Ohio as herein
provided. (Third Reading)
Mr. Vincent: We are at third reading.
Mr. Baker moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? We did have a public hearing on this earlier. No
comments, no questions, no concerns, and no one for or against. Is there anything else
from Council? We'll have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
9 Ayes
0 Nays
0 Absent
Motion is approved. Ordinance is passed.
TRAFFIC ORDERS
No traffic orders were filed for this meeting.
MISCELLANEOUS AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Mr. Vincent: We turn to the Mayor first. What good news do you have for us, sir?
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Mayor Mason: Thank you, Mr. President. In case you missed it, we had a First Friday
and had live entertainment at that. Saturday night, we had Git Shorty, a local celeb, I'll
call him, Elbert Ferguson, a local family. And then we had the Rolling Rockers warmed
up the audience. Then last night down at Zane's Landing was Dave Schubach Big Band
and Steve Spires. So, we had great entertainment. Now, this coming Thursday night will
be our 6th Thursday show and that will be Conspiracy Band. By the way, I've told the
Law Director we're going to rename the City- Music City, Ohio, get ready for litigation
with Nashville.
Mr. Vincent Wonderful. Thank you, Mayor. We do have a lot of great entertainment in
the City. A lot of people are enjoying it. Anything else from administration?

PRIVATE PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Mr. Vincent: We have no private petitions for speakers. Our next meeting is August 22,
2022. Anything else from Council?
Mrs. Osborn: Mr. President, I just wanted to know if the Public Safety Director would
like to give any reminders about the fair next week.
Doug Merry: Yes, it would probably be a good idea to remind people -don't park on
the grass islands off of Pershing. There is plenty of parking over there with the
fairgrounds on the property. Officers will be out; they will be writing tickets in the noparking zones. Residents still need to be able to get in and out of their homes, so we
need to be respectful of that.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, thank you. So don't park in driveways, don't park in front of
driveways, and parking is free at the fair on the property, which may be a little safer.
Doug Merry: Every year we have a big problem with people parking in no-parking
zones and parking on those grass islands all over the place. It tears them up and
causes problems for everybody.
Mr. Vincent: And it's no fun getting a ticket. Thank you for bringing it up. Anything else
from Council?
Mr. Roberts moved to adjourn. It was seconded by Mrs. Osborn. A voice vote was taken
with all being in favor of adjournment. None were opposed. The meeting ended about
7:12 p.m.

Mr. Vincent: Thank you everyone and have a good evening.

Billie Corns
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-107

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO ACT AS THE
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MEMBERS OF THE ZANESVILLE CITY
COUNCIL FOR PURPOSES OF REQUIRED PUBLIC RECORDS TRAINING.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT resolved by the council of the City of Zanesville,
county of Muskingum, and State of Ohio:
SECTION 1: It is hereby declared to be the intent of Zanesville City Council to
appoint Billie Corns, Clerk of Council, as the representative of the members of
Zanesville City Council for purposes of attending and receiving Public Records Training
in compliance with ORC 109.43(B).
SECTION 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage, approval by the Mayor, and the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

, 2022

ATTEST:____________________
BILLIE CORNS
CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED:

__________________________
DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

, 2022

DON MASON
MAYOR

This legislation approved as to form:

__________________________
Law Director’s Office

Rob Sharrer,
Public Safety Committee Chair
RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 121
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
A RESOLUTION DECLARING
"BEGGAR'S NIGHT"/"TRICK OR TREAT"
FOR THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE

WHEREAS, there is a tradition called "Beggar's Night" or "Trick or Treat" whereby
children go to neighbors' residences for the Halloween celebration and are given various items,
particularly candy; and.
WHEREAS, the City is concerned with the safety and welfare of the children as they will
likely be in the streets, and it is necessary to restrict the time the children are exposed to such
dangers; and
WHEREAS, if neighborhoods within the City celebrate the tradition at the same time on
the same day the public will be more aware to watch for children in the streets and hopefully
decrease their exposure to a hazardous situation; and
WHEREAS, this Council wishes to designate Sunday, October 30, 2022, between the
hours of 5:30 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. as the City's "Trick or Treat" night.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
Muskingum County, Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: Sunday, October 30, 2022, from 5:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. is officially
designated as Beggar's Night/Trick or Treat for the City of Zanesville.
SECTION TWO: This resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: _ __ _ _ __ ,2022

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

Billie Corns
Clerk of Council

APPROVED:

____

Donald L. Mason, Mayor

_,

2022

This legislation approved as to form:

Law Director's Office

Budget & Finance
Kade Haddox
CITY OF ZANESVILLE
ORDINANCE #2022-108

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE TO
USE THE STANDARD ALLOWANCE FOR THE LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY
FUND AS AUTHORIZED BY THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT.
WHEREAS, The United States Congress passed the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) on
March 10, 2021, and President Joe Biden signed into law on March 11, 2021;
WHEREAS, The American Rescue Plan Act created the Local Fiscal Recovery Fund to provide
funding to all cities and counties throughout the nation;
WHEREAS, The City of Zanesville received a total allocation of $2,645,848 through the Local
Fiscal Recovery Fund, with the first half coming in 2021 and the second half coming in 2022;
WHEREAS, The United States Department of the Treasury published in the Federal Register the
Final Rule governing the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds on January 27, 2022;
WHEREAS, The Final Rule allows local governments to elect a standard allowance of up to $10
million, not to exceed the total award allocation, in lieu of calculating revenue loss as prescribed by
Treasury; and
WHEREAS, The Final Rule allows local governments to use their portion identified as revenue
loss to provide any government services;
Now, therefore, be it ordained by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
Section 1:

That the Zanesville City Council elects to use the standard allowance for identifying
revenue loss within the Local Fiscal Recovery Fund as authorized by the American
Rescue Plan Act; and

Section 2:

That the City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign all paperwork associated with the City
of Zanesville regarding the standard allowance for identifying revenue loss within the
Local Fiscal Recovery Fund as authorized by the American Rescue Plan Act.

Section 3:

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage approval by the
Mayor, and the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: _ _ _ _ ___,2022

Billie Corns
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

ORDINANCE #2022-108

APPROVED: _ _ _ __, 2022

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason, Mayor

Law Director's Office

Kade Haddox
Budget and Finance Director
Ordinance No.: 2022-109

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE OPIOID
SETTLEMENT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville is eligible to receive annual payments over 18
years from the OneOhio Distributor Settlement with McKesson, Cardinal, and
AmerisourceBergen; and
WHEREAS, the settlement resources will be used for eligible expenses that address
healthcare needs stemming from the opioid crisis, in accordance with the OneOhio
memorandum of understanding related to OneOhio Abatement Strategies including
Community Recovery, Statewide Innovation & Recovery, and Sustainability, and Auditor of
State Bulletin No. 2022-003; and
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville requires a fund to accept the Opioid Distributor
Settlement resources; now, therefore,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:

Section 1 That new Fund 356 "Opioid Settlement," is hereby established for receipt
of funds from the OneOhio Opioid Distributor Settlement for eligible expenses pursuant to
the OneOhio memorandum of understanding related to OneOhio Abatement Strategies
including Community Recovery, Statewide Innovation & Recovery, and Sustainability.
Section 2 That the Director of Finance is hereby authorized to accept annual
settlement payments and deposit them into Opioid Settlement Fund 356.
Section 3 That the proper City officials are hereby authorized to do all things
necessary and proper to carry out the provisions of Section 1 and 2 hereof.
Section 4 That this ordinance shall be an emergency measure necessary for the
preservation of the public peace, health, safety, and general welfare and shall be effective
immediately. The reason for the emergency is the immediate need to accept the funding and
comply with the guidance established by the Auditor of State.
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PASSED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _,2022

Billie Corns
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

APPROVED: _ _ _ _, 2022

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald L. Mason, Mayor

Law Director's Office

Kade Haddox
Budget and Finance Director

Ordinance No.: 2022-110

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE ONEOHIO REGION 12
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE UNDER THE ONEOHIO
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING, AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville is a Local Government in Muskingum County,
Ohio that has adopted and approved The OneOhio Memorandum of Understanding ("The
Memorandum"), which establishes a mechanism to disburse settlement proceeds from opioid
litigation ("Opioid Funds") into Ohio's communities to help abate the opioid crisis, including
allocation of Opioid Funds to Regions through a statewide Foundation Board; and
WHEREAS, this jurisdiction is in Region 12 under The Memorandum, which is
comprised of Coshocton, Guernsey, Monroe, Morgan, Muskingum, Noble, Perry and
Washington counties; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to The Memorandum, Section D.2: "Each Regional shall
create their own governance structure so it ensures all Local Governments have input and
equitable representation regarding regional decisions including representation on the board
and selection of projects to be funded from the region's Regional Share ... Regions shall have
the responsibility to make submissions regarding the allocation of funds to projects that will
equitably serve the needs of the entire Region", and
WHEREAS, it is found that the Region 12 governance structure outlined below
ensures that all Local Governments in the Region have input and equitable representation
regarding regional decisions under The Memorandum, and
WHEREAS, the formation of the Region 12 governance structure is of immediate
importance to the communities in Region 12, so that imminent Settlement Proceeds
committed to the State of Ohio to be distributed per The Memorandum can be disbursed to
help abate the Opioid crisis.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
SECTION 1. This Jurisdiction hereby approves the Region 12 governance structure
under The OneOhio Memorandum of Understanding ("The Memorandum") as follows:
The OneOhio Region 12 governance structure will initially be comprised of a 26member Board of Directors, consisting of the following:

Class 1: Eight (8) county appointments, consisting of one ( 1) appointee by each Board
of County Commissioner in the Region; and

Ordinance No.: 2022-110

Class 2: Eight (8) municipal appointments, consisting of one (1) appointee by the
legislative authority of each municipality serving as a county seat in the Region; and
Class 3: Three (3) township trustees from throughout the Region, selected by a
majority vote of Class 1 appointees; and
Class 4: Four (4) persons from private sector, non-profit, governmental or nongovernmental organizations in the Region, selected by a majority vote of Class 1
appointees; and
Class 5: Three (3) persons from the public or private-health sector, Departments of
Health, Health Districts, or ADAMH Boards or Districts in the Region, selected by a
majority vote of Class 1 appointees.
To further the purposes of The OneOhio MOU, the Board shall endeavor to include
participation on the Regional Board by subject matter experts from backgrounds such as health,
mental health, treatment, education, judicial, law enforcement, community/faith and lived
experience backgrounds, and/or such other persons as the Board determines to be consistent
the objectives of The OneOhio MOU and needs of Region 12.
The OneOhio Region 12 Board will determine matters consistent with The Memorandum,
Section D, such as
A. Adopting or amending Region 12 bylaws, regulations, rules and policies;
B. Selection Region 12's member on The OneOhio Recovery Foundation, Inc. board
("Foundation Board") under Section D.4 of The Memorandum.
C. Evaluating and making submissions regarding the allocation of Regional funds
throughout the Region;
D. Engaging experts, counsel, consultants and vendors as appropriate for these purposes;
and
E. Taking other actions consistent with Section D.2 of The Memorandum
SECTION 2. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this legislative
body relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting, and that all
deliberations that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in
compliance with all legal requirements.
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SECTION 3. This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure, necessary for
the preservation of the public peace, health, welfare and safety. The reason for the
emergency is to ensure prompt pursuit of funds to assist in abating the opioid epidemic
throughout Ohio.
PASSED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,2022

Billie Corns
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ , 2022

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald L. Mason, Mayor

Law Director's Office

Department of Public Safety
ORDINANCE NO. 2022111
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ASSESSMENT OF LIENS
AGAINST CERTAIN PROPERTIES FOR DEMOLITION AND
CLEARANCE ACTIVITIES, AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville, Ohio is authorized by section 110.3 of the 2009 ICC
Property maintenance Code and section 715.261 of the Ohio Revised Code to charge for
demolition and clearance services and to certify the same to the County Auditor to facilitate the
assessment of a lien against the property; and
WHEREAS, there are certain property owners from which the City has been unable to
collect charges due and of which the owners have been notified; and
WHEREAS, the City desires to exercise its authority in regards to recovery of these
costs now and in the future; and
WHEREAS, the Muskingum County Auditor's Office has established Monday,
September 12th , 2022 as the deadline date (ORC 727.30) to file property assessments,
necessitating that this ordinance be adopted as an emergency legislation.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of
Ohio, that
SECTION ONE: All associated demolition and clearance expenses in accordance with
the Ordinances or Regulations of the City of Zanesville shall constitute a lien upon the
corresponding lot, parcel , building or premises where these activities occurred within of the City
of Zanesville. Such expenses shall be certified to the Muskingum County Auditor by the Public
Safety Director or the Clerk of Council. Upon certification , the lien shall vest, and the Auditor
shall place the same on the tax duplicate of the County with the interest and penalties allowed
by law and to be collected in the same manner as other taxes.
SECTION TWO: City Council hereby authorizes the Public Safety Director or City Clerk
to file demolition and clearance assessments for the period ending July 20, 2022 with the
Muskingum County Auditor against subject parcels indicated in Attachment A in the total
amount of $123,539.00
SECTION THREE: The Public Safety Director is authorized to remove a lien upon
payment in full of a delinquent account.
SECTION FOUR: Assessment and certifications regarding demolition and clearance
activities may be made at any time.
SECTION FIVE: This ordinance shall be an emergency measure necessary for the
preservation of the public peace, health, safety, and general welfare and shall be effective
immediately. The reason for the emergency is the immediate need to certify these liens within
the period prescribed by law. Failure to do so would deprive the City of funds used for the
preservation of housing and the safety of our citizens and neighborhoods. If this ordinance does
not receive the necessary votes to pass as an emergency, this Ordinance shall take effect and
be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

PASSED:

111

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,2022

ATTEST:
BILLIE CORNS,
Clerk of Council

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 2022

Don Mason,
Mayor

DANIEL M. VINCENT
President of Council

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

ATTACHMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 2022-111

_ _ _ _ _, 2022

Debra J. Nye
Muskingum County Auditor
401 Main Street
Zanesville OH 43701
Dear Ms. Nye:
This letter is to certify the following demolition charges to be placed on the tax duplicate from
the City of Zanesville. An ordinance authorizing the assessments is attached.
PARCEL

•

ADDRESS

•

OWNER

•

•

OWNER ADDRESS

AMOUNT •

84· 46-01·07-000

921GODDARD

ROGER M ILLER

1522 SHA90N AVENUE

ZANESVILLE. OH 43701

S2.50000

82· 21-02-03-000

1002 SEVALL

PAUL & RUTH SOUER

1 3863 ROSEFARM RD NW

CROOKSVILLE, OH 437 3 1

$ 7,600.00

84-26-06-02-000

1044 GREENWOOD

TRACEY ROBl NSON

1227 CANF ELD RD

ZANESVILLE, OH 43701

$16,30000

81-05 -03-2 1·000

109 PIERCE

HARRY MOORE & SUS.>.N DE• LUlETER

109 PIERCE ST

ZANESVILLE. OH 43701

$4,50000

8 3 -22·0~- 15 -000

1212RIDGE

V ICTOR DAYTON SR

1583 RIDGE AVE

Z.>.NESVILLE. OH '13701

$6,200 00

8 d-38 ·01·t8 -000

1233 CANFIELD

S'Tl:PHANIE FORD

529 N 1s- sT

CAMBR OGE, 011 43725·1205

S5.00000

83- 26-05-10-000

U45 MELROSE

DONALD & DOTTIE BENJAMIN

4802 VEN7.JRA BLVD

PLA NF ELD. I N 46168-5678

8 1- 14-02·03-000

212WEL1£R

WM CAPITAL PAATNE'IS 68 LLC

:oo CONGRESS 1'.1/E SU TE 1 SSC

AUSTlN, T)( 7870!

8<1-31-02·18-000

1114 EASTMAN

NEW PERSPEC"'II/E PSSc MANAGEMENT

37 W BRl OGE s- S-E ZOOC

DUBLIN, 0 11 43017-2 117

8 1-52-01·20-000

1020MARIETTA

11FRANK & LORI 11ARI/EY

6 35 S11El.8Y S-

ZANESI/ILLE. OH 43701

$4.935 00

8-1·38 -04-:0-000

1049 MERSHON

REBECCA FINLAY

533 PROI/I OENCE LN

HEBRON. OH 43025-861:

S4,7 35 co

8 2·33-02·23-000

618 BAKER

110UIE & GLADYS NEWMAN

618 BAKER 5"'

ZANESVI LLE. OH 43701

S8.765 00

92·35-02·07"000

ns LEXINGTON

GIOVANN KEMP

5900 CU7..ER I..Al(E RO

BLUE ROCK, 011 43720-9517

$9,8 77 OC

82-35·04-20-000

795 LEXINGTON

JO-!N KEMP

5920 CU-L.ER LAKE RD

SLUE .ioo:. 011 43720

$9,877 CO

8 3 ·23-88-02-000

1322RIDGE

JOANNA SWINGLE

327 MAIN ST

Pl:EASANo CHY. 0 11 43772

S5.800 00

8 1- 47-03· 12-000

1399 STONE

EVAN SMITl1

27~0SHAW RD

ZANESVIU£, 011 43701·7!9 3

S6,8 5 0 .00

TOTAL

Sl0,20000
S7,9 0000
$ 1 2.50000

$123,539.00

Department of Public Service
Scott Brown, Director

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-112
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ENTER
INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH GOSSMAN GROUP FOR
THE GATEWAY DISTRICT LAND USES AND STREET SCAPE DESIGN
WHEREAS, the City has identified the Gateway District as the first location within
Downtown to promote entertainment; and
WHEREAS, land use and street scape are ways for the City to identify the Gateway
District; and
WHEREAS, the City has selected the Gossman Group to perform preliminary design
services for land uses and street scape within the Gateway District; and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The Public Service Director is hereby authorized to enter into a
professional contract with the Gossman Group to perform land use and street scape design
services within the Gateway District.
SECTION TWO: The cost for the services is estimated to be not more than $60,000
and shall be taken from Line Item 101-7791-53225 and 354-7951-56185.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

_ _ _ _ __ __ _ , 2022

ATTEST:
Daniel M. Vincent,
President of Council

Billie Corns
Clerk of Council

APPROVED:

- -- - - - - -Donald L. Mason, Mayor

, 2022

This legislation approved as to form:

Law Directors Office

Attachment for Ordinance 2022-112

20JULY22

Scott Brown
Public Service Director
City of Zanesville
401 Market Street
Zanesville, OH 43701

RE:

Professional Services Proposal for:
Phase I Streetscape R/W Improvements & land Uses for Municipally Owned
Property within the Gateway District in Downtown Zanesville, OH

Scott:

Gossman Group [GGR] is pleased to present this Proposal for the project captioned above for your review and
consideration.
This proposal will identify the key elements including our Project Team, Approach and Scope of Services to perform
Schematic Design level design & documentation for the Gateway District streetscape and proposed land uses for
municipally owned properties within the district. Final deliverables from the schematic design phase of work
are expected to include a color-rendered streetscape plan, plan enlargements at key sites and focus areas,
illustrative street cross sections, preliminary selection of key materials and st reet furnishings, a line-item
schedule of values for the streetscape construction items, and a compendium of related material and design
standard s.
Our on -going work for the City of Zanesville and the preliminary Gateway District Plan will serve as the basis of
this Phase I initiative.
Project Context

The Gateway District as defined in the Gateway District Preliminary Plan is as follows:
•
•
•
•

West Boundary - Muskingum River [excluding Zane's Landing Park]
East Boundary- 4 th St to Shinnick St to 5th Street [excluding McIntire Library]
North Boundary - Interstate 70
South Boundary - Market Street

Th e light industrial, institutional, and public uses provides a unique scale and massing of buildings within the
district. Open public and private parking lots throughout th e district present challenges for visually connecting the
district hence the need for a high quality, streetscape design to re-enforce a pedestrian friendly, urban
environment. The intersection at Shinnick & 4th Streets offers the opportunity t o establish an enhanced sense of
arrival into t he main intersection of the district while serving as a link between the proposed AEP Building
renovation project & Secrest Auditorium .
While th ere is evidence of reinvestment in the John McIntire Library and retail & commercial buildings @ Market &
4 th Street, gaps in ground floor activity, a lack of street tree canopy and the open parking lots creates a more
automotive-oriented sense of place and less appealing pedestrian environment.
M r. Scott Brow n, City Service Director
Gat eway District Streetsc:ape Design &
City Owned Land Use Proposal
20 JULY 22

Attachment for Ordinance 2022-112

Design Goals and Precedents
Previous Downtown Zanesville Master Plans have identified the Gateway District as a potential vibrant
entertainment district with Secrest Auditorium serving as an anchor destination. The recently completed
Preliminary Gateway Plan states that residents and visitors view the 5th Street Exit ramp from 1-70 as a gateway
and entrance into Downtown and that "the area around the Welcome Center should be transformed".
The Gateway District Preliminary Plan prepared by GGR earlier this year echoes this idea and emphasized the
importance of future land uses and streetscape design effort appropriate for an entertainment district.

ASSUMPTIONS
Below are listed assumptions for consideration and key elements of this Phase of work.

1.

The GGR Team will be led by Principal Craig Gossman, AIA; NCARB.

2.

The Client, the City of Zanesville, will be led by Todd Slaboden; AJA or an appointed staff member or
representative.

3.

The GGR team will collect and assemble data to create base maps of study area. This step will utilize data
provided by the City, County, and various state organizations. The data will be compiled and organized to
create a series of maps using AutoCAD.

4.

GGR will also work with client team to assemble all applicable streetscape standards. GGR will review the
information and prepare a summary of key points that will be used as a baseline for the streetscape
design concepts.

5.

The streetscape concept extents will include the area within the right of way along streets identified
within the district. Existing underground utilities are anticipated to remain in the current locations.

6.

GGR will work with the City of Zanesville to determine a preferred design based on the review of the
concepts.

7.

Upon creation of the preferred concept, GGR will assist the City of Zanesville with public engagement
sessions with applicable stakeholders .

8.

Necessary adjustments and updates will be completed to the preferred concept to create the final
concept. The final concept will be used as the basis of design to create drawings for bidding and
construction.

9.

A proposal for Bidding and Construction drawings should be provided later.

10. The Publicly owned areas of focus are defined as;
•
•
•
•

West Boundary- Muskingum River fexcluding Zane's Landing Park]
East Boundary-4th St to Shinnick St to 5th Street [excluding McIntire Library]
North Boundary - Interstate 70
South Boundary- Market Street

11. This Design effort will focus on finalizing the preliminary design components for the publicly owned
facilities of the district with character references, images of like-places, and data supporting the district
conceptual design & development.

12. The concepts developed previously for the Gateway District preliminary planning initiative, will serve as a
launching point for this work. Services to be included are:
•
•

Detailed Preliminary Design articulation for the project Preliminary Streetscape Design
Preliminary cost estimates to include Roadway, Hardscape, Landscaping, Street Lighting

2

Mr. Scott Brown, City Service Director
Gateway District Streetscape Design &
City Ow ned Land Use Proposal
20JULY22

Attachment for Ordinance 2022-112
13. Six (6) web based meetings, One (1) in person meeting to review final preliminary design and one (1)
public meeting for public presentation.

14. Preliminary technical meetings with the City and utility companies [if required] will be coordinated by the
City of Zanesville.

15. The City of Zanesville will provide their Streetscape Standards to the GGR team for use in the Preliminary
Design effort.

16. We assume the survey previously prepared for MCCFA by LINN Surveying Engineering Services will serve as
the base survey for our work. This survey was prepared in support of earlier studies and construction
documents. The district remains primarily the same today.

17. We have assumed stakeholder meetings, public meetings and public relations interface will be coordinated
and scheduled by the City of Zanesville Representative.

18. Technical meetings with the City, utility companies or ODOT will be coordinated by the City of Zanesville
Representative.
Team Members Roles & Responsibilities
Gossman Group has assembled a team of professionals with areas of expertise to apply to the Gateway
Streetscape design & documentation initiative. We feel the skill sets required for the project will be provided in
through this teams deep and diverse experience and expertise.
GOSSMAN GROUP design & planning
+ Craig Gossman, AIA; NCARB; Principal
+ Megan Karalambo, Project Planner
+
Paul Karalambo, Project Designer
Gossman Group [GGR) focuses on urban environments in communities both large and small including adaptive
repurposing through historic preservation, new in-fill architecture, downtown strategic plans, district plans and
corridor studies.
Our approach is to carefully evaluate the unique characteristics of the study area and craft guiding design &
development principles that are grounded in market realities but reflective of the physical personality of the place.
GGR will oversee all urban design development directions and coordinate the work prepared by the team.
DESIGNING LOCAL
+ Mathew Leasure; ASLA- Principal
+ Nie Senna; Project Landscape Architect
Designing Local is a certified woman-owned business dedicated to helping communities connect people to place
through culture. Designing Local will assist the team with urban design, place making, public art programming, and
landscape architecture design.
SANDS DECKER ENGINEERING & SURVEYING
+ Rick Cox; Associate, Senior Project Manager
+ Theresa Kanavel; Senior Project Manager
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Attachment for Ordinance 2022-112
Sands Decker is an established Ohio engineering & surveying firm providing civil engineering design & surveying
services for state & governmental, educational, and private clients. Sands Decker provides services for projects
involving land Development, Commercial & Industrial Development, K-12 / Higher Education, Single-Family &
Multi-Family Residential, Municipal Facilities, Transportation & Traffic Engineering, and Infrastructure.
APG ARCHITECTS
+ Brian Addis; Senior Partner
+ Cole Ryan; Principal
+ Beau Seyerle; Project Designer

APG Architects will assist the team with local knowledge gained from on-going architectural services on projects
currently underway within the district. APG will be engaged in the design process and take on 3-0 delineation and
construction budgeting responsibilities as the project unfolds.
SCOPE OF SERVICES
Below we have listed the requested Scope of Services as described in the counter proposal per your markup.

Task 1 - Survey, Base mapping, & data collection
In order to create a digital site base with correct utility info, existing structures, and topography, a digital
ACAD survey base is required. GGR will utilize an existing ALTA survey conducted by LINN engineering
updated in 2011. GGR will organize all applicable streetscape standards and inventory provided by the city
to guide the creation of the future streetscape concepts.
Review inventory of existing street infrastructure and service facilities with Sands Decker to confirm the
impact of overhead and underground utilities, prevalent building basement/vault conditions and other
factors affecting the future streetscape design.
With current base information, conduct walking tour, inventory and analysis of existing public realm
conditions, ground floor tenanting, key buildings & features, physical conditions, and contributing historic
resources.
Identify opportunities to create a more walk-able, accessible, and inviting pedestrian network, and
address improved bicycle mobility, alternative transportation options and potential traffic calming
measures.
Prepare typical plan and cross-section drawings representing prevalent existing conditions along the
targeted corridor and district.
Catalogue current and/or relevant prior design plans for the corridor and provide precedent imagery that
illustrates how comparable communities have successfully approached the enhancement and
revitalization of similar corridors and districts.

Participate in project kick-off meeting to present information collected to date and initial listening session
with the City Representative & others as required to present work to date, confirm project goals and
objectives, schedule, applicable design standards and any preliminary design thoughts. (One (1) 90minute meeting is planned).

Task 1 Deliverables:
Survey, base mapping, photography, and other pertinent data collection (digital submission)
Collection of existing streetscape element's (digital submission)
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Task 2 - Streetscape Concepts
1.

GGR will create three budget levels of street scape improvement packages for client review. This will
include plan views with hand drawn graphics and digital cross sections of the streetscape. Precedent
imagery to show levels of finish and materials will also be included.

2.

The GGR team is recommending a one-day on-site design charrette to present preliminary findings
and design concepts for the target area. This valuable exercise is to be conducted in the context of a
highly focused Design Charrette where Un-interrupted, collaborative attention can be brought to bear
on the issues of the study area. It is our intent to gain confirmation on the accuracy of the
information collected to date and to receive feedback on the preliminary design concepts presented.
In addition, we will present potential enhancement opportunities, and redevelopment strategies of
city owned property for consideration and discussion.

3.

Using the results of the Design Charrette and additional input from Sands Decker, The GGR design
team will prepare three (3) streetscape design plan concepts with options as may arise and seem
logical, all in to-scale working paper form. These plans will build upon stakeholder feedback and
illustrate proposed improvements within and adjacent to the public right-of-way. Exhibits developed
at this time will depict the following:
+ Street lane configuration & intersection geometries

+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+

+
+

On-street parking and metering (if any)
Future curb and sidewalk arrangement
Potential on-street bike facilities, transit stops, and lateral connections of the above into
adjoining streets and the forger district
Specialty pavements
Street furniture
Street lighting and obove-grade utility placements
District identity, gateway, signing and wayfinding concepts [final design by others]
Landscape placement [exact specie & specifications not included}
Public Art location recommendations [final design by others]
WIFI integration [interface by others]

4.

Provide recommendations for the development of more sustainable, earth-friendly design and
construction practices.

5.

Provide recommendations for the development of enhancements to the public realm including
recommended improvements to gathering and events spaces, and greenspaces, streets and
alleyways, wayfinding and signage.

6.

With Sands Decker, discuss recommendations for possible improvements to existing overhead
utilities and traffic control infrastructure [if applicable].

7.

Prepare initial presentation package including the exhibits noted above with prototypical plan, crosssection and 3-d illustrations, potential materials palette, and other supporting design information .
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8.

Prepare conceptual, line-item estimate of anticipated construction costs and participate in interim
review meeting with City Representative (and others as required) to develop consensus on design
direction and budgeting moving forward.

9.

Participate in interim review meeting with the City Representative and others as required to solicit
comment on work to date. (one (1) ninety-minute meeting is planned).

10. Participate in follow-up engagement session with key property and business owners to solicit
feedback on work to date and seek input into site-specific design opportunities. (One (1) ninetyminute meeting is planned).

11. Revise presentation materials and content in response to comments from above and participate in
interim project review meeting(s) or open house with invited district stakeholders to solicit comment
on work to date.

12. This will allow our team to gain concurrence on the design direction, prioritization and phasing of
work moving forward.

13. Participate in final schematic design review meeting with the entire GGR team, City representative
(and others as required) to receive comments and direction on the preferred design plan moving
forward. (One (1) ninety-minute meeting is planned).
Task 2 Deliverables:

{3) Streetscape concept packages (digital submission)
Presentation of concepts to City Leadership
Task - 3 Highest and best land uses for Secrest Parking lot

•

GGR will evaluate the current layout and function of the city owned properties including the Secrest
Parking lot and provide three budget level improvements to the public space for placemaking &
future outdoor events.

•

Using all information collected to date, the GGR team will prepare "high altitude" land planning
schemes illustrating potential redevelopment scenarios for the city owned properties. These schemes
will provide various combinations of development to provide the city with alternative development
"snapshots." As an example, one scheme might emphasize open gathering space for while another
might suggest mixed-use development.

Task 3 Deliverables:
(3) Conceptual layouts for public events (digital submission)

Presentation of concepts to City Leadership
Task - 4 Review and Refinement

Upon receipt of the concepts, GGR will conduct one meeting with the city to select a preferred concept.
The preferred concept will be refined based on city staff comments and used for the engagement
needed with the project stakeholders.
An estimate of probable cost will also be completed after the preferred concept is identified so the
project costs can be evaluated. The process will anticipate combining elements of each concept into one
'preferred concept'.
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Task 4 Deliverables:
Meeting to discuss design concepts and direction moving forward (in person)
Preferred streetscape concept (digital submission)
Preferred parking lot concept (digital submission)
Estimate of probable cost (digital submission)
Task 5 - Engagement with project stakeholders
The GGR Team will present the preferred streetscape and parking lot concept to the project
stakeholders. During this meeting the preferred concept will be reviewed and discussed . The
consultant team will solicit feedback and make updates/modifications as needed/ directed.
Task 5 Deliverables:
Meeting with project stakeholders (virtual)
Final Streetscape and parking lot concept (digital submission)
Estimate of probable cost (digital submission)

ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE
Below we have listed the proposed schedule to complete the tasks as described above .
Task 1: Survey, base mapping & data collection
Task 2: Streetscape Concept Packages
Task 3: Parking lot Concept Packages
Task 4: Review and Refinement
Task 5: Engagement with project stakeholders

TOTAL ESTIMATED TIMEFRAME

6 month+/-

PROFESSIONAL FEES & REIMBURSEABLE EXPENSES
GGR will provide the Scope of Services described above on a Lump Sum basis as listed below:
$4,950
Task 1: Survey, base mapping & data collection ........... 3 - 4 weeks
$24,000
Task 2: Streetscape Concept Packages ... ...... .... ............ ... 6 - 8 we eks
$9,250
Task 3: Parking lot Concept Packages ...... ...... ............... ... 3-4 weeks
$8,500
Task 4: Review and Refinement ...... .................. ... ......... ... 3 - 4 weeks
Task S: Engagement with project stakeholders ...... ....... =-3_-_4.:....w~e.;;;;ekc.;;:s:..__ _ _ _ _$""3_.,-=-0=00

$49,700

TOTAL LUMP SUM FEE

•Miscellaneous Reimbursable Expenses are included in this proposal. Additional travel to cities for t he research
purposes would require City of Zanesville authorization .
GGR General Terms and Conditions are a part of this proposal and are attached for your review .

ADDITIONAL SERVICES
GGR can provide additional services as requested for further articulation of the Gateway District Streetscape
Project. Future Phases of the Streetscape Initiative might include:
•
•

•
•

•
•

Artist Renderings of Proposed St reetscape
Design Development
Design & Development Guidelines
Construction Documents
Bidding & Negotiating
Construction Administration
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Public Service Committee Andrew Roberts, Chair

ORDINANCE NO. 2022 - 113
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 22-94 THAT AUTHORIZED THE ASSESSMENT OF LIENS
AGAINST CERTAIN PROPERTIES WITH DELINQUENT BILLS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville, Ohio is authorized by sections 743.04 and 729.49 of the Ohio Revised Code to
charge rents for water, sewage, storm water, and combined sewer overflow services and to certify delinquent rents to
the County Auditor to facilitate the assessment of a lien against the property; and
WHEREAS, there are delinqnent accounts of certain property owners from which the City has been unable to collect
charges due and of which the delinquent owners have been notified; and
WHEREAS, the City desires to exercise its authority in regards to delinquent water, sewage, storm water, and
combined sewer overflow bills now and in the future; and
WHEREAS, the City provided several months' notice to the property owners that have delinquent accounts to pay by
May 31, 2022 or the lien would be filed thereafter; and
WHEREAS, the Muskingum County Auditor's Office has established Monday, September 12 th , 2022 as the deadline
date (ORC 727.30) to file property assessments, necessitating that this ordinance be adopted as an emergency
legislation; and
WHEREAS, failure to timely file the assessments and collect the monies owed to the utilities results in reduced
revenues to pay annual operation, maintenance and replacement costs; therefore it is in the public's best interest to pass
the ordinance as emergency legislation; and
WHEREAS, City Council passed Ordinance 22-94 that established the total lien amount as $89,217.3 l; however, some
accounts were paid after the date of the said Ordinance and prior to certification by the Muskingum County Auditor,
which changed the amounts on the exhibit certified to the Auditor; and
WHEREAS, when the City sent the Ordinance and exhibit to the Auditor, it was returned because the amount contained
in the Ordinance did not equal the total of the exhibit; and
WHEREAS, this Ordinance is being passed to amend Ordinance 22-94, specifically to amend the amount set forth in
said Ordinance, and ensure that the amounts contained in the certifying ordinance match the amounts contained in the
lien exhibit presented to the Auditor; and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: Each water, sewer, storm water, and combined sewer overflow service charged in accordance with
the Ordinances or Regulations of the City of Zanesville shall constitute a lien upon the corresponding lot, parcel
building, or premises served by a connection to the water, sewer, storm water, or combined sewer overflow systems of
the City of Zanesville. If the same is not paid in full within 22 days after becoming due, such delinquency shall be
certified to the Muskingum County Auditor by the Public Service Director or the Clerk of Council. Upon certification,
the lien shall vest, and the Auditor shall place the same on the tax duplicate of the County with the interest and penalties
allowed by law and to be collected in the same manner as other taxes.

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-113

SECTION TWO: City Council hereby authorizes the Public Service Director or City Clerk to file delinquent water,
sewer, storm water, and combined sewer overflow assessments for the period beginning January 1, 2021, and ending
December 31, 2021, with the Muskingum County Auditor against subject parcels indicated in Attachment A in the
total amount of$86,271.74. These charges will be placed on the 2022 taxes, payable in 2023, for a one-year term.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall supersede and amend the amounts set forth in Ordinance 22-94 and the
exhibits thereto.
SECTION FOUR: The Public Service Director is authorized to remove a lien upon payment in full of a delinquent
account.
SECTION FIVE: Assessment and certifications regarding water and sewer delinquencies may be made at any time.
SECTION SIX: For the reasons stated above, this Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure. Provided it
receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more members of City Council, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in
force immediately upon its passage and approval of the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and
after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

_________

____,

2022

ATTEST: _ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ _
BILLIE CORNS
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED:

This legislation approved as to form:

- - - - - -- -~ 2022

DONALD MASON, MAYOR

Law Director' s Office

Ordinance 2022-113
City of Zanesville
Water, Sewer, Storm Sewer & Combined Sewer Overflow - January 1, 2021- December 31, 2021
Parcel#
Owner
Service Address
Tax Amt
82-02-02-10-000
David Ball
1117 Clay St
$115.14
62-53-05-11-000
Christina L Curtis
1415 National Way
$392.80
82-02-01-46-000
Joseph M Ankrom
1118 Arch St
$372.94
82-05-03-05-000
Kimberly Layton
1004 Race St
$138.61
82-04-03-03-000
Doris Moore
714 Chester St
$115.48
82-10-01-03-000
Y-City Property Improvement Group 1519 Maysville Ave
$239.59
82-10-01-04-000
Y-City Property Improvement Group 1525 Maysville Ave
$152.42
82-10-01-34-000
Susan J Sumner
645 Grove Ave
$317.52
82-09-02-09-000
Bobbie J Spofford
818 Grove Ave
$23.15
82-10-03-17-000
Bobbie J Spofford
865 Grove Ave
$33.91
82-13-03-20-000
Sharon L. Taylor
635 Echo Ave
$139.75
82-12-02-32-000
ETM Construction of Ohio LLC
839 Echo Ave
$164.30
82-12-02-05-000
Robert Decaro
1359 Pine St
$271.64
82-11-01-15-000
Brigette M Palmer
1214 Eppley Ave
$359.10
82-17-01-02-000
Troy D Fink
1033 Lindbergh
$139.30
82-17-02-10-000
Cynthia J Batstra
1128 Lindbergh Ave
$386.85
82-26-03-02-000
Jacob K Parks
921 Sevall St
$30.05
82-21-03-27-000
Robert P Hamilton
1059 Sevall St
$77.62
82-21-02-03-000
Ruth A & Paul J Soller
1002 Sevall St
$331.35
82-21-03-23-000
Todd & Teresa Kopchak
905 Fess St
$67.62
82-21-02-36-000
Total Properties Resources
1019 Pine St
$127.91
82-21-02-25-000
Y-City Property Improvement Group 1083 Pine St
$347.35
82-16-01-01-000
Troy A & Kelli D Vandagriff
1101 Pine St
$359.65
82-07-01-11-000
Kympire Inc
1364 Maysville Ave
$75.10
82-15-05-45-000
Kristopher & Terri Osborn
503 Eppley Ave
$359.10
82-15-05-33-000
Brian E Cohen
623 Eppley Ave
$276.74
81-13-02-10-000
Terry Bocook
1205 Lake Dr
$6.63
81-13-02-13-000
Janet A Morgan
1223 Lake Dr
$50.83
81-12-03-05-000
Brykay Enterprises LLC
1323 Lake Dr
$520.43
81-13-02-14-000
Total Properties Resources
1229 Lake Dr
$42.26
81-12-04-10-000
David Wagner
1421 Jewett Dr
$102.86
81-14-02-05-000
RBAH LLC
220 Weller Ave
$37.33
81-14-02-07-000
Stewart, Jason K
228 Weller Ave
$359.10
81-08-03-14-000
Jason Meltzer
1141 Putnam Ave
$69.04
81-08-04-23-000
Charlie N Rodgers
1209 Putnam Ave
$386.30
81-09-04-16-000
Thomas Mealick
1429 Putnam Ave
$37.87
81-10-03-09-000
Correy Lee Stewart
1529 Putnam Ave
$138.75
81-07-02-04-000
Teresa L Reed
1010 Putnam Ave
$65 .38
81-09-05-10-000
Dedra Wisecarver
1444 Putnam Ave
$3,077.72
81-07-02-01-000
John A Whitehead
1003 Moxahala Ave
$376.97
81-07-01-03-000
Y-City Property Improvement Group 1010 Moxahala Ave
$322.45
81-07-01-16-000
Michael Foster
1060 Moxahala Ave
$17.41
81-08-01 -08-000
Tad Sowers
1104 Moxahala Ave
$306.29
81-08-01-09-000
Thomas L Puckett
1112 Moxahala Ave
$295.78
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81-08-06-06-000
81-09-01-18-000

Kenny Atkins
Chad Tetak

81-02-03-10-000

Patricia A Ford

1218 Moxahala Ave

$103.42

1311 Muskingum Ave
449 Moxahala Ave

$100.06
$359.10

829 Moxahala Ave
27 Madison St

$359.10

81-05-03-28-000

Russell W Miller

81-02-05-13-000

Karen Long

81-04-02-05-000

Isaac Pepper

126 Van Buren Ave

$372.24

81-05-03-21-000

Harry Moore & Susan Defluiter

109 Pierce St

81-19-03-01-000

334 Washington St.
731 Putnam Ave

$248.38
$94.03

81-19-03-08-000

Robert C Bruce
Cheryl Moody
Tad Sowers

319 Woodlawn Ave

$311.62

81-17-02-02-000

It's My House LLC

565 Woodlawn Ave

$333 .12

81-17 -03-04-000

Mary Withers

618 Woodlawn Ave

$359.10

81-16-02-11-000

Earl S Butcher

820 Woodlawn Ave

$359.10

62-31-03-35-000

Theresa A Snider

1308 Coopermill Rd

$194.32

82-30-03-02-000
82-33-02-24-000
82-39-01-32-000

Kenneth E Atkins Jr
Hollie & Gladys Newman
37 Properties, LLC
John C Smith

706 Nancy Ave
618 Baker St
622 Baker St

$227.48
$218.28
$42.39

779 Pine St

$362.26

82-33-02-02-000

Total Properties Resources

732 Pine St

$26.17

82-37-02-07-000

Tad Sowers

Sl0 Pine St

$143.61

83-09-02-14-000

Konnie C Nelson, Trustee

723 Shelby St

$112.82

82-37-02-05-000

724 Shelby St
521 Carey St

$389.29

82-37-02-30-000

Dianna L Wood
Lawrence Starcher

82-33-03-12-000
83-19-02-08-000

Betty Hodge
Michael & Brandi Bennett

660 Carey ST
435 Cliffwood Ave

83-05-01-03-000

Joshua & Susan Newton

614 Cliffwood Ave

83-28-05-08-000

Robert Alexander

125 Pine St

$359.10
$111.00

83-21-02-11-000

Lawrence Starcher

223 Pine St

$386.30

83-20-02-19-000

Thomas Landerman

247 Pine St

$396.18

83-20-02 -18-000

Rosemary Bailey

253 Pine St

83-18-09-29-000
83-20-01-10-000

Total Properties Resources
Keith Elliott

83-19-01-70-000
82-34-05-06-000

Zanesville Family Homes

433 Pine St
618 Grandview Ave
334 Lucia Ct

$505.76
$261.32
$158.33

81-16-01-01-000

82-33-02-23-000

$386.30

$336.06

$365.86
$386.30
$71.54

$119.26
$567.77

82-29-03-23 -000
82-34-04-08-000

Danny L Farley
Christopher L Smith
Brian Buck

930 Ohio St
843 Larzelere Ave

$359.10

728 Larzelere Ave

$202.72

83-18-01-20-000

DSV SPV3 LLC

338 Luck Ave

$55.50

83-18-09-16-000

Leonard D Curtis

410 Luck Ave

83-10-01-15-000

T & E Rentals, LLC

458 Luck Ave

$275.43
$82.23

83-10-01-17-000

T & E Renta Is, LLC

466 Luck Ave

$108.57

83-10-01-18-000
82-34-05-18-000
83-04-01-15-000

T & E Rentals, LLC
Total Properties Resources
Michael A Gamble

472 Luck Ave

$359.10
$148.89

82-34-04-06-000
83-22-02-06-000

Kenny Atkins

1030 Ohio St

$359 .10
$183.18

Lifestyle Prop, Inc.

920 Vine St

$386.30

83-22-03-15-000

Mildred G Carr

215 Columbia St

$359.10

83-18-02-31-000

Brandi R Devault

255 Luck Ave

$425.53

755 Munson Ave
1021 Ohio St
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83-22-03-05-000

Jackson, Harley

204 Luck Ave

$359.10

83-22-03-08-000

220 Luck Ave

$129.49

83-18-02-02-000

Y-City Property Management
T & E Rentals

1016 Cedar St

$386.30

83-18-03-08-000

Chad Allen

343 Abington Ave

$51.03

83-18-02-07-000

Demetria E Jimenez Luis

324 Abington Ave

$359.10

83-18-02-12-000
83-23-88-04-000
83-17-02-24-000

It's My House LLC

348 Abington Ave
213 Brighton Blvd
357 Brighton Blvd

$125 .74

Jamel R. Burris
Marlene Wallace

83-03-04-12-000
82-35-01-01-000

MVL Properties
Ford, Heidi A

242 Brighton Blvd
1427 Ohio St

37 Properties, LLC

1204 Ohio St

82-35-04-22 -000

Brian C. Mains

787 Lexington Ave

$168.29

82-35-02-07-000

Giovanni A Kemp

718 Lexington Ave

$246.03

82-35-05-07-000

788 Lexington Ave
840 Lexington Ave

$167.39

82-28-02-04-000

Cottonwood
Troy R Bell

82-28-02-08-000

Wells Fargo Bank Na Trustee

860 Lexington Ave

$359.10

82-28-02-13-000

884 Lexington Ave
407 Clark St

$359.10

83-18-05-02-000
83-11-04-13-000

Wells Fargo Bank Na Trustee
Rebecca A Matthews
Sargeant Properties LLC

599 Dryden Rd

82-36-03-16-000

Lisa Ehrnfield

761 Dryden Rd

$60.46
$114.57

82-36-05-01-000

Charles Strain

843 Dryden Rd

$234.62

83-11-03-05-000

Bethany and Todd Harris
Tara D Forker

598 Dryden Rd

$359 .10

723 Westbourne Ave

$483.72

784 Westbourne Ave
804 Westbourne Ave

83-17-01-05-000

82-36-01-19-000

$164.43
$151.22
$247 .88
$111.00
$63.53

$359.10

$359.10

82-35-04-08-000
82-35-04-12-000
62-29-03-23-000

Joanne L Zeigler
Anthony & Carol Landers

1865 Owen St

$806.17
$359 .10
$270.34

82-36-02-05-000

Low Cost Cars Of Ohio

1628 Owens St

$152.77

83-01-04-01-000

1640 Owens St

$772 .60

1842 Owens
424 Schuam Ave

$270.34

83 -12-05-09-000

Mike Naughton Associates, LTD
Ryan Nichols
David Ball

83-02-04-17-000
83-12-05-31-000

Jason S Griffith
James L Kirkbride

83-02-04-36-000

Mabel Barner
Jones, Robert Q

62-29-03-04-000

83-12-04-03-000
83-02-03-21-000

Nancy Davis

622 Schaum Ave
461 Spangler Dr
625 Spangler Dr
448 Spangler Dr
616 Spangler Dr

$80.14
$386.30
$359.10
$416.95
$359.10

83-02-03-25-000

Erin Swingle Carney
Heather Quick

630 Spangler Dr

$359.10

83-01-01-03-000

Bocook, Terry M

678 Spangler Dr

$25.77

82-36-02-15-000

Scott E Law

1611 Dearborn Ave

83-22-05-06-000
83-2 2-05-08-000

Herbert Newton

1203 Rige Ave
1213 Ridge Ave

83-23-02-29-000

Kevin B Castle
Chad E Allen

$359.10

$175.31
$120.42
$772.60

83-17-03-09-000
83-15-01 -11-000
83-17-02-01-000

T & E Rentals, LLC
Ball, David

1301 Ridge Ave
1433 Ridge Ave
1575 Ridge Ave

Cottonwood Property Mgmt.

1330 Ridge Ave

$51.29

83-17-05-01-000

Total Properties Resources

1402 Ridge Ave

$150.55

83-17-04-01-000

Total Properties Resources

1518 Ridge Ave

$103 .28

83-15-07-03-000

Morgan Crestview LLC

1532 Ridge Ave

$67 .99

$143.23
$69.67
$112.50
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83-17-05-39-000

Robert J Mack IV

315 Mead St

$302.63

83-16-03-14-000

Ball, David

83-16-03-17-000

Fleming, Geraldine M

403 Bailey St
417 Bailey St

$359.10

83-16-02-12-000

Donald Mozena

376 Bailey ST

$115.21

83-16-02-06-000

Krystapher Cortez
Peter Rapol

394 Bailey ST

$277.50
$268.70

$80.14

83-16-01-09-000
17-99-02-53-000

Florence L Norman

83-26-05-04-000

CMR Zanesville Properties

83-25-02-12-000
83-25-03-13-000

Homestar Renovations LLC
Daniel H Norris

1236 W Main ST
1576 Hudson St
1621 S State St

83-14-02-19-000

Rentals, T & E

384 Stewart St

83-15-03-04-000

Walls, Michael P & Aimee L

258 Schaum Ave

$359.10

83-15-03-10-000

324 Schaum Ave LLC

324 Schaum Ave

$245.92

83-24-05-06-000

Sarge Properties

220 Florence Ave

83-15-02-05-000
83-15-02-22-000

Majestic Rentals
William C Lewis

252 Florence Ave
327 Gray St

83-15-01-03-000
83-23-04-06-000

Douglas Wayne
Terry Bocook

252 Gray St
123 Corwin Ave

$105.94
$165.53
$294.29

83-23-05-04-000

Tara D Forker

211 Corwin Ave

$359.10

83-23-07-16-000

Y-City Property Improvement Group

1502 Carroll St

$133.04

83-23-03-01-000

Smart, Robin B

1452 Crown St

83-23-01-15-000

Mary J Caldwell

$359.10

83-26-05-15-000

Keith Elliott

$424.75
$386.30
$89.78

83-26-05-16-000
83-26-05-17-000

T & E Rentals LLC
Keith Elliott

83-23 -01-02-000
83-27-05-13-000

1323 Hickory St
1645 Border St

176 Brighton Blvd
Ben & Daves & Benjamin J Gruenebau 101 Chapman St
Krissa Willett
1223 Melrose Ave
1230 Melrose Ave
1234 Melrose Ave

$130.12
$57.73
$111.00
$413.50
$82.22

$33.14
$90.85

$123.41

$33.05

1238 Melrose Ave

$813.26

83-29-01-09-000

David M Cooper

1133 Pear St

$386.30

83-40-02-20-000
83-39-02-01-000

Goines, Esther G
Kevin L Burrell

1303 Lee St
1478 Railroad ST

$359.10

83-42-03-11-000
17-86-02-14-000
17-86-02-05-000
17-86-08-13-000

Kevin L Burrell
Dooley, Lynn & John
Kevin Kochalko

854 Turner St
2175 Galena Ave
2150 Licking Rd

$359.10
$251.03

Zanesville Terrace Prop

320 Rehl Rd
413 Fairbanks St

$114.59
$49.89

85-09-02-15-000

Morgan Crestview LLC
Y-City Improvement Group

1633 Maple Ave

$424.93

85-10-02-09-000

Mardia LLC

1610 Maple Ave

$358.12

85-10-02-02-000

Rococo Properties LTD
David Ball

1646 Maple Ave

$129.44

817 Maple Ave

Stephen Pennington

1275 Linden Ave

$115.12
$361.78

85-06-03-14-000

James B Mitchell
Lucie Gerber

85-11-05-04-000

Carol S Hoffer

408 Thurman St
519 Forest Ave
1646 Euclid Ave

$359.10
$837.31
$25.06

85-22-02-12-000
85-17-04-06-000

Joseph F Hargrove

431 Yale Ave

$284.00

Davi Stahl

529 Clyde Ct

$20.87

85-10-05-12-000

Vicki Rapol

531 Van Horn Ave

85-15-04-05-000

Myers Rental Enterprises LLC

1645 Hoge Ave

84-19-01-03-000

84-18-03-02-000
84-22-01-33-000
84-2 2-04-01 -000

$56.95

$251.03

$171.27
$38.07
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85-15-05-23-000

Low Cost Cars Of Ohio

85-23-02-22-000
85-23-03-02-000

Elsie E Fleischer &Mary Marlowe
Edward D Houk

1681-85 Linden Ave
2011 Linden Ave
220 Tileston Ave

85-25-05-06-000

Edward D Houk

220 Tileston Ave

85-25-05-06-000

Edward D Houk
Edward D Houk

220 Tileston Ave
220 Tileston Ave
2342 Hoge Ave

85-25-05-10-000

$31.34
$359.10
$503 .89
$783.60
$163.52

387 Englewood Ave

$666.98
$359.10
$227.06

Ronald & Jennifer Westerheide

545 Glendale Ave

$239.39

85-21-02-06-000

Bobbi Spofford

540 Glendale #1

$38.12

85-28-01-15-000

Wingo, Stephen J

538 Winton Ave

$19.27

8 5-3 5-04-2 2-000

Andrew R Ankrum

86-05-03-20-000

Stephen J Wingo

2498 Glen Dr
979 Somers St

86-14-03-24-001
86-14-03-12-000

JHS Rentals LLC

2510 Outlet St
952 Wabash Ave
740 Princeton Ave

86-19-01-0S-508

ASBZ Family Trust
740 Princeton Real Estate Holdings
Little Andys LTD
DC Capital

86-32-04-49-550

GMG Investment Group LLC

3537 Chesapeake Dr

86-34-01-01-020

Jays Northpointe Limited

4659 Millennium

$173.82

17-37-03-20-000
85-18-03-06-000

David L Zaverl

3333 Dale Rd
639 Caldwell St

$161.17
$359.10

85-08-02-24-000

Thomas A Arnold Estate
Team Capital

819 Fairmont Ave

86-05-02-21-000
17-76-01-11-000

JHS Rentals
ZS Adams LLC

2143 Maple Hill ST
1824 Adams Ln

84-13-01-01 -000

Benjam in J Gruenebaum
Charles E Carr

910 Convers ln

$216.47

1044 McIntire Ave

$359.10

1147 Roosevelt Ave

84-12-01-04-000

T & E Rentals, LLC
John Peshak

$359.10
$359.10

1040 Sunset Ave
1049 Mershon ln
1374 Playford Ave
467 Warwick Ave

8 5-34-04-0 6-000
85-26-02-08-000
85-27-02-03-000

86-15-01-05-000
86-19-01-07-502

84-13-04-06-000
84-13-04-13-000

John R Hoy & JM Partners
Michael D Smith

84-09-03-08-000

Arnold R Dingess

84-3 8-04-10-000
84-39-01-16-000

Rebecca J & Tyo Finlay
Mark Baker

84-38-05-10-000

JAH Real Estate Properties, LLC

84-43-03-09-000

Joshua A & Susan M Newton
James D Hicks
William Lent

84-38-01-03-000
84-43-04-04-000
84-47-01-12-000
8 4-45-01-17-000
84-50-01 -10-000
84-50-01-03-000
84-58-02-09-000
84-2 5-04-2 6-000
81-57-03-49-000

Ronald & Carol Stotts
Rachel Ralph

2950 Fairway
Fairway Lane GB

1160 Roosevelt Ave

1067 Mound St

$399.91
$54.18
$75.31
$40.58
$287 .51
$89.74
$234.72
$31.94

$284.11
$55.53
$95.34

$28.14

$218.28
$148.51
$302.68

1265 Blandy Ave

$74.30
$32.07

1120 Blandy Ave

$179.52

877 Goddard Ave

$359 .10

Scott & Steve Frame

1145 Hall Ave
1340 Lewis Dr

Tedlaco, Inc

1423 Mitchell Ave

LCM Homestead Ltd
Total Properties Resources

110 N 6th ST

$72.79
$359.15
$362.56
$106.83
$263.40

Krissa Willett

719 Orchard ST
930 Harvey St

$1,669.51

81-50-98-18-000

Good, Wilma

473 Wayne Ave

$359.65

81-40-02-13-000

Royce A Coates Jr Estate

518 Wayne Ave

$1,174.85

81-52-05-27-000

Good Shepherd Orthodox Catholic
Kenny Atkins

970 Hughes St

81-52-05-26-000

972 Hughes St

$331.90
$255 .98
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81-51-02-24-000
81-62-05-11-000

Jennifer Mc Cort

231 Stillwell St

$387 ,66

Leonard Tribler

813 Marietta St.

81 -57-03-72-000

Cindy Gifford

991-993 Marietta St

$149.31
$772 .60

81-52-03 -05-000

Y-City Property Improvement Group

964 Marietta St

$135.56

81-52-04-12-000

Anderson Estate, Lucy

$356.48

81-53-03-21-000
81-52-03-11-000
81-53 -03-01-000

Andrew R Ankrum
Lisa Fouch
Ohio Rentals II LLC

1083 Sharon Ave
1131 Sharon Ave
922 Sharon Ave
1241 Sharon Ave

$38.94
$331.90
$40.60

81-53-01-22-000

Lorey, Sandra K

1299 Sharon Ave

$331.90

81-54-01-05-000

Robert Gallagher

1435 Sharon Ave

$278.63

81-45-01-09-000

Kenneth E Hayes

380 White Oak Ave

81-45-01-10-000
81-43-02-05-000

Chambers, Gregg A
Brenda A Howard

408 White Oak Ave

$386.30
$331.90

555 Haessler Ave

$329.83

81-4 7-04-06-000
81-47-05-07-000
81-47-05-03-000

Est of Robert A Johnson
Wilkinson, Mark S
Wion, Harold R

1417 St Charles St
1436 St. John St
1444 St. John St

$138.83
$331.90

81-37-01-02-000

Hansel, Michael A

1452 Sunrise Ave

73 -03-10-16-000

Kenneth E Hayes

1746 Kirk Dr.

$331.90
$270.34

81-43-01-03-000

David E Lacey

535 Schwallie Ave

$669.26

81-46-03-23-000

Edward & Christina Swartz
Tipton, Carl

369 Freeborn Ave
1234 Danville St

$208.74
$362 .08

158 Green St

$386.30

81-59-02-04-000

Flesher, James M
Bocook, Terry M

1228 Swingle St

81-59-03-06-000
81-56-01-11-000

Y-City Property
Harper, Bernard F

33 Glessner Ave
110 Glessner Ave

$27.00
$359.10

81-60-02-32-000

DBL J LLC

46 Southard Ave

$141.32

70-55-03-06-000

Y-City Property

39 Richards Rd

84-2 6-06-02-000

Tracey Robinson

1044 Greenwood Ave

84-27-05-13-000

Joshua A & Susan M Newton
Catherine Doughty

1136 Greenwood Ave

81-48-01-06-000
81-55-01-08-000

84-27-05-08-000

1166 Greenwood Ave
1054 Wheeling Ave

$277.50

$87 .14

$55 .87
$246.58
$331.90
$45.38
$96.00
$359 .10
$359.10

81-58-01-05-000
81-S9-03-24-000
84-2 7-04-06-000

Ethel Stemm

84-28-01-05-000
84-28-01-04-000

Douglas E Wayne
James M Flesher

1211 Greenwood Ave
1339 Greenwood Ave
1345 Greenwood Ave

84-27-05-03-000

Adam West

1202 Greenwood Ave

$386.30

84-26-05-12-000

Joshua A & Susan M Newton
Rodriguez Hampton

10288 Market St

$436.78

Susan Nolen

149 Hamline Ave

$359.10

Lisa Ehrnfield
William & Susan Lent

170 Hamline Ave
163 Fox Ave

$359.10
$348.06

Kenny E Atkins Jr

1209 Eastman St

$85 .99

84-30-02-04-000

Lisa A Ehrnfield

1319 Eastman ST

$42.06

84-30-02-05-000

Total Properties Resources

1333 Eastman ST

$214.61

84-31-03 -19-000

Total Properties Resources

$136.29

81-17-04-0 6-000

Paxson, Terrian L

141 Beulah Ave
703 Putnam Ave

81-18-03-01-000

Millennium Properties

503 Putnam Ave

84-26-05-05-000
84-31-02-50-000
84- 30-04-18-000
84-30-04-16-000
84-31-01-17 -000

Margery F Moody
David A Durant

1130 Wheeling Ave

1050 Market St

$47.05
$386.30

$85.32

$1,187.74
$1,045 .99

Ordinance 2022-113

81-16-01-09-000

Zane Trace

763 Putnam Ave

17-99-04-02-000

William M Welch

1840W Main

$885.15

85-25-01-22-000

Carol George

2121 Linden Ave

$597.61

85 -06-01-12-000

Star General

1402 Maple Ave

83-39-06-04-000

1504 Beech St. LLC

1504 Beech St

$1,905.10

83-40-02-01-000

$216.18

$2,472.89

$868.42

Juman Inc.

515 N State St

81-63-03-03-000

ZDT Redux LLC

608 Main St

$808.32

81-63-03-05-000

ZDT Red ux LLC

606 Main St

$748.22

81-63-03-40-000

ZDT Redux LLC

634 Main St

$748.22

81-63-02-05-000

B & K Properties Ohio LLC

20 N 6th ST

$1,073.76

84-28-01-03-000

Linda Helser

1351 Greenwood Ave

84-58-04-14-000

Just One Properties LLC

712 Market ST

$477.65

81-68-01-11-000

Flesher, James M

229 Main St

$126.75

86-34-01-01-071

Jahweh LLC

High Pointe Ct

$129.75

$418.06

$86,271.74

Ways and Means Committee

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-114
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPROPRJA TION ORDINANCE
NO. 2022-40 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, it is necessary during the course of the fiscal year to make changes
to the City's working budget; and
WHEREAS, to keep the City's estimated revenues and appropriations as current
as possible those changes should be made at least on a quarterly basis or when the need arises;
and
WHEREAS, without appropriate funding City Departments would be in jeopardy
of providing efficient and reliable services, it is therefore in the best interest of the residents and
visitors of Zanesville, to have this ordinance passed as an emergency.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: Exhibit #1 of ordinance No. 2022-40, which established
revenues and appropriations from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022, is hereby
amended as indicated in Exhibit #1, attached hereto.
SECTION TWO: For the reasons stated above, this ordinance is declared to be an
emergency measure. Provided it receives the affirmative votes of six (6) or more members of
Council, this ordinance shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval
of the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

PASSED

- - - - - - - - - - - -, 2022

ATTEST: - - - - - - -- - - - - -Billie Corns
Clerk Of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President Of Council

APPROVED: - - - - - - -- - - ,2022

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason
Mayor

Law Director's Office

THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE
WORKING BUDGET 01/01/2022-12/31/2022
ORDINANCE #2022-114 (Exhibit #1)
Budget
2022

101

Amending
Amount

Amended
Budget

GENERAL FUND
BALANCE AVAILABLE

$4,564,018

101-43101

Residential Building Permits

$57,600

$35,000

101-47326

Reimbursement Indigent Defense Fees

$61 000

$50 000

$4,564,018
$0
$0
$0
$92,600
$0
$111 000

TOTAL RECEIPTS

$15,115,782

$85,000

$15,200,782

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

$19,67g,8o0

$85,000

$19,764,800

141 600

25 000

$166 600

$234,770

$25,000

$259,770

REVENUES:

APPROPRIATIONS:
101-7863
101-7863-532

BUDGET & FINANCE
Contractual Services
TOTAL

101-7921
101- 7921- 55303

TRANSFERS
Transfer to City Redevelopment Fund

646,427

85,000

$731 427

101-7951
101-7951-53434

OlJ:I..ER..DISBURSEMENTS
Contingencies

697 237

(25,000}

$672,237

$997,237

($25,000)

$972,237

$19,679,800

$85,000

$19,764,800

TOTAL
TOTAL APPROPRIATION

~

215

APPROPRIATIONS:
215-6531-54487
215-6531-54488

STATE & FEDERAL INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUND

State Grant Paving
Federal Grant Paving
TOTAL APPROPRIATION

Budget
2022

0
1,376,915
$1,429,112

Amending
Amount

699,600
{699,600)
$0

Amended
Budget

$699,600
$677 315
$1 ,429,112
!O)

303

REVENUES:
303-48101
303-49199

APPROPRIATIONS:
303-4105-56185
303-4105- 56186

CITY REDEVELOPMENT FUND

Budget
2022

Amending
Amount

Amended
Budget

BALANCE AVAILABLE

$33,573

Transfer From General Fund
Misc. Revenues

646,427
0

85,000
65,000

$731,427
$65,000

TOTAL RECEIPTS

$790 ,092

$150,000

$940,092

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

$823,665

$150,000

$973,665

350,000
402 665

65,000
85 000

$415,000
$487 665

$823,665

$150,000

$973,665

Major Projects
NRAC Y-Bridge Confluence Park
TO TAL APPROPRIATION

$33,573

Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-115
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE CONSENTING TO AN EXPEDITED TYPE TWO ANNEXATION
PETITION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, An expedited type two annexation petition has been filed with the Clerk of
the Muskingum County Commissioners on August 4th, 2022 and accepted on August 8th , 2022 to
annex approximately 0.6 acres as described in Exhibit A of this Ordinance from Falls Township
to the City of Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, The agent of the Muskingum County Commissioners delivered the
annexation petition to the City of Zanesville Clerk of Council on August 8th , 2022 (Exhibit A);
and
WHEREAS, The Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023 (C) requires within twenty-five
(25) days after the petition is filed, the legislative authority shall adopt an ordinance stating
consent or objection to the annexation; and
WHEREAS, Failure to pass this Ordinance in a timely manner would result in the City
being out of compliance with the rules and regulations set forth in the Ohio Revised Code.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio; that:
SECTION ONE: The City of Zanesville, Ohio hereby consents to the expedited
type two annexation petition as attached in Exhibit A.
SECTION TWO: Due to the filing requirements of Section 709.023 (C) of the
Ohio Revised Code, this Ordinance shall be filed by the Clerk of Council with the Muskingum
County Board of Commissioners no later than September 2 nd , 2022.
SECTION THREE: It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of
this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open
meeting of Council and that all deliberations of the Council and any of the decision-making
bodies of the City of Zanesville which resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to
the public in compliance with all legal requirements of the State of Ohio.
SECTION FOUR: For the reasons stated herein, this Ordinance is declared to be
an emergency measure. Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more members of
City Council, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

Ordinance No. 2022-115

PASSED:

- - - - - - - - - ~ 2022.

ATTEST:
BILLIE CORNS
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 2022.

DONMASON
MAYOR
THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Attachment to Ordinance 2022-115

RECEIVED
AUG OB 2022

CLERK OF COUNCIL
EXPEDITED TYPE 2 ANNEXATION PETITION
UNDER ORC 709.023
TO ANNEX REAL ESTATE TO
THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO

TO:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO

The undersigned, Jeffrey L. Drennen (Official Record 2983-169) hereby
request to file a petition for annexation to the City of Zanesville, Ohio. The petition is an
Expedited Type 2 Annexation as provided under ORC 709.023. Jeffrey L. Drennen
(Official Record 2983-169) is the sole owner of the parcel described in the annexation
description as Exhibit "A" and plat as Exhibit "B'' (Territory), showing the boundaries of
the Territory sought to be annexed to the City of Zanesville, Ohio.
Linn Engineers is hereby appointed agent for the petitioner as required by Ohio
Revised Code Section 709.02, with full power and authority hereby granted to said
agent to amend, alter, change, correct, withdraw, re-file, substitute, compromise,
increase or delete the area, to do any and all things essential thereto, and take any
action necessary for obtaining the granting of this petition. Any amendment, alteration,
change correction, withdrawals, re-filing, substitution, compromise, increase or deletion,
or other things or action for the granting of this petition shall be made in the petition,
description and/or by said agent without further expressed consent of the petitioner.
This document may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the
same document

- 1-

Attachment to Ordinance 2022-115

WHOEVER SIGNS THIS PETITION EXPRESSLY WAIVES THEIR RIGHT TO
APPEAL IN LAW OR EQUITY FROM THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS'
ENTRY OF ANY RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THIS SPECIAL ANNEXATION
PROCEDURE, ALTHOUGH A WRIT OF MANDAMUS MAY BE SOUGHT TO COMPEL
THE BOARD TO PERFORM ITS DUTIES REQUIRED BY LAW FOR THIS SPECIAL
ANNEXATION PROCEDURE.

Jeffery L. Drennen (Official Record 2983-169)
2195 Cambridge Road
Coshocton, OH 43812
By _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

Date _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

Jeffery L. Drennen
By _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

-2-

Date _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __
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JUNE 3, 2022
NOTICE TO ADJOINING LANDOWNERS:

Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023, Jeffery L. Drennen (Official
Record 2983-169), is hereby providing notice for his intent to Petition for Expedited
Type 2 Annexation into the City of Zanesville from Falls Township. A petition was filed
with the Muskingum County Commissioners on Thursday, August 4, 2022 and accepted
by the Board of Muskingum County Commissioners on Monday, August 8, 2022. The
Expedited Type 2 Annexation regulations do not require a hearing or publication of a
legal notice for the proceedings.
Jeffery L. Drennen (Official Records 2983-169) is the sole owner of the parcel
described in the annexation description as Exhibit "A" and p!at as Exhibit "B" (Territory),
showing the boundaries of the Territory sought to be annexed . A copy of the
annexation petition and exhibits are on file at the Muskingum County Auditor's Office at
the Muskingum County Courthouse for public viewing.

Linn Engineers has been appointed agent for the petitioner as required by Ohio
Revised Code Section 709.02, with full power and authority hereby granted to said
agent to amend, alter, change, correct, withdraw, re-file, substitute, compromise,
increase or delete the area, to do any and all things essential thereto, and take any
action necessary for obtaining the granting of this petition. Any amendment, alteration,
change correction, withdrawals, re-filing, substitution, compromise, increase or deletion,
or other things or action for the granting of this petition shall be made in the petition,
description and/or by said agent without further expressed consent of the petitioner.
Any owner who signed the petition for annexation may remove that signature by
filing with the clerk of the board of county commissioners a written notice of withdrawal
of the owner's signature within 21 days after the date the agent for the petitioners
mailed the notice of the hearing to the owner. Thereafter, signatures may be withdrawn
or removed only in the manner authorized by section 709.032 of the Revised Code.
I, THE UNDERSIGNED, HEREBY VERIFY AND CERTIFY THE DATE OF THIS MAILING IS
MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2022 FROM THE OFFICE OF LINN ENGINEERS, 534 MARKET STREET,
ZANESVILLE, OHIO, 43701.

NOTARY PUBLIC

-3-
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AFFIDAVIT

State of Ohio, Muskingum County, ss.
Tara C. Wilson, of Linn Engineers. Agent
being first duly sworn, says that
pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023 the following affidavit is prepared as
proof of service to the City of Zanesville Clerk, the Falls Township Clerk and the
adjoining landowners to Jeffery L. Drennen's intent to petition for Expedited Type 2
Annexation into the City of Zanesville from Falls Township.

Linn Engineers has been appointed agent for the petitioner as required by Ohio
Revised Code Section 709.02.
The Falls Township Clerk and City of Zanesville Clerk were personally served
with the petition and acceptance legislation from the Muskingum County
Commissioners on August 8, 2022. The adjoining landowners were served notice by
regular mail on August 8, 2022.

Signature of Affiant

Date

Agent
Position

Sworn to before me and subscribed in my presence this __ day of _ _ __

Notary Public

~4-
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DATE: AUGUST 8, 2022
The following action was taken by the Falls Township Trustees at its meeting
today:

RE:

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF THE JEFFERY L. DRENNEN
(OFFICIAL RECORDS 2983-169) PROPERTY IN FALLS
TOWNSHIP, MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO TO THE CITY OF
ZANESVILLE.

The Falls Township Trustees accept and approve a resolution for the
annexation of lands in Falls Township, Muskingum County, Ohio owned by Jeffery L.
Drennen (Official Records 2983-169) into the City of Zanesville as an Expedited Type 2
Annexation as provided under ORC 709.023.

(See Attached Description and Plat)

FALLS TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES

-5-
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SUBJECT LANDOWNERS:
Jeffery L. Drennen
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-09-000
(3675 Bradley Cr.)
2195 Cambridge Road
Coshocton, OH 43812

Howdy Real Estate Investments LLC
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-13-000
(3600 Bradley Cr.)
160 N. Seventh Street
McConnelsville, OH 43756

ADJOINING LANDOWNERS:
Bradley Trust LLC
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-17-000
(3625 Bradley Cr.)
160 N. Seventh Street
McConnelsville, OH 43756

Howdy Real Estate Investments LLC
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-11-000(
(3606 Bradley Cr.)
160 N. Seventh Street
McConnelsville, OH 43756

3610 Bradley LLC
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-10-000
(3610 Bradley Cr.)
PO Box 340
Zanesville OH 43702

Deborah L. and William A Buzza
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-16-000
3615 Bradley Cr.
Zanesville OH 43701

Jere Kay and Carl Gardner, Trustees
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-15-000
3613 Bradley Cr.
Zanesville OH 43701

Terry Curtin
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-14-000
3605 Bradley Cr.
Zanesville OH 43701

Bradley Trust LLC
Parcel Number: 17-27-02-13-000
(3601 Bradley Cr.)
160 N. Seventh Street
McConnelsville, OH 43756

-6-
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EXHIBIT "A"

THE PROPOSED ANNEXATION PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FOLLOWS:

-7-
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EXHIBIT "8"

THE PROPOSED ANNEXATION PROPERTY PLAT FOLLOWS:

-8-
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JEFFREY L. DRENNEN
FALLS TOWNSHIP
MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO
ALL OF PARCEL NO.17-27-02-09-000
OR2983-169

Situated in the State of Ohio, County of Muskingum, Township of Falls, bounded and described as
follows :
Being all of the lands now owned by Jeffrey L. Drennen as recorded in Musldngum County Official
Record 2983-169 and being the remainder of Lot 9 of Meadowbrook No. 2 as the same designated
and delineated on Muskingum County Plat Book 8, Page 57, United States Military Lands, and being
more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at an axle found on the southwest corner of Lot 9 of said Meadowbrook No. 2 as the same
is designated and delineated on Muskingum County Plat Book 8, Page 57;
thence along the east right of way of Bradley Circle (40' R/W) as the same is designated and
delineated on said Meadowbrook No. 2 Subdivision, the following two courses:
l)
North 17 degrees 21 minutes 13 seconds East 45.00 feet to an iron pin set;
2)
a curve to the right having a radius of 496.90 feet, an arc length of 123.38 feet, a chord
bearing North 24 degrees 21 minutes 50 seconds East, and a chord length of 123.07 feet to
an iron pin set on the southwest comer of lands now owned by State of Ohio (DR 1134-27,
Parcel 6WD);
thence along the south line of said State of Ohio lands, South 83 degrees 53 minutes 50 seconds East
32.50 feet to an iron pin set on the south line of lands now owned by State of Ohio (DR 851-47,
Parcel 32WD);
thence along the south line of said State of Ohio lands, South 54 degrees 46 minutes 4 7 seconds East
120.43 feet to an iron pin found on the west line oflands now owned by JT Management Limited
Partnership (OR 2481-158) and the City of Zanesville corporation line;
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thence along the west line of said JT Management Limited Partnership lands and City of Zanesville
corporation line, South 17 degrees 42 minutes 59 seconds West 144.13 feet to an iron pin set on the
northeast corner of Lot 8 of said Meadowbrook No. 2;
thence alongalongthenorthlineof said Lot 8, North 69 degrees 56 minutes 35 seconds West 160.78
feet to the principal place of beginning;
containing 0.589 acres, more or less, subject to all legal road right of ways and applicable easements,
written or implied.

Iron pins set are 5/8 inch by 30 inch long rebar with a plastic identification cap.
Bearings are based on the Ohio State Plane Coordinate System, NAD83, South Zone, as per GPS
observations made on June 14~ 2022.

This description is written from an actual field survey completed August 1, 2022 by Timothy H.
Linn, Reg. No. 7113.

Timothy H. Linn
Reg. No. 7113

Parcel No.
All of: 17-27-02-09-000 (+/- 0.589 ac.)

Date

ANNEXATION PLAT
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The State of Ohio, Coun ty of Muskingum, Township of Falls
and being the remaining part of Lot 9 within Meadowbrook No . 2, Plat
Book No. 8, Page 57 of the Plat Records of Muskingum County
United States Military Lands.
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Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-116
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED
TO AND THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF ANNEXED PROPERTY AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, An expedited type 2 annexation petition has been filed with the Clerk of the
Muskingum County Commissioners to annex approximately 0.6 acres (as described in Ordinance
2022-115) from Falls Township to the City of Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, The agent of the Muskingum County Commissioners delivered the
annexation petition to the City of Zanesville Clerk of Council on August 8th , 2022 as described in
Ordinance 2022-115; and
WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023 (C) requires within twenty (20)
days after the petition is filed, the legislative authority shall adopt an ordinance stating what
municipal services the municipal corporation will provide to the territory proposed for
annexation; and
WHEREAS, Section One of this ordinance outlines the municipal services that shall be
provided to the proposed territory if annexed; and
WHEREAS, The Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023 (C) requires a statement that the
existing zoning of the property under the Falls Township Zoning Resolution shall be compatible
with the Municipal Zoning Standards or adequate screening and buffering as defined by Section
709.023 (C) is included in the development plan; and
WHEREAS, Failure to pass this Ordinance as an emergency would result in the City
being out of compliance with the rules and regulations set forth in the Ohio Revised Code.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio; that:
SECTION ONE: Municipal services to be provided to the subject properties (as
described in Ordinance 2022-115) shall include but are not limited to the following: water
service, sanitary sewer service, storm sewer services, Zanesville City Police, and Zanesville City
Fire Department services. Additionally, comprehensive planning and zoning services shall be
provided under Part Eleven of the City of Zanesville Codified Ordinances. Services are subject
to the availability of existing infrastructure.
SECTION TWO: In accordance with Chapter 1125.04 of the City of Zanesville
Codified Ordinances, the subject properties (as described in Ordinance 2022-115) shall retain the
zoning classification granted under the Falls Township Zoning Resolution once annexed. Within
thirty (30) days of execution of an annexation agreement, the City of Zanesville shall grant the
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zoning classification of C-4 Highway Commercial pursuant to the City of Zanesville's
Comprehensive Plan Objectives. The Property shall be subject to the landscaping and screening
standards set forth in Chapter 1151 of the City of Zanesville' s Codified Ordinances.

SECTION THREE: Due to the filing requirements of Section 709.023 (C) of the
Ohio Revised Code, this Ordinance must be filed by the Clerk of Council with the Muskingum
County Board of Commissioners no later than August 29 th , 2022.
SECTION FOUR: It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of
this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open
meeting of Council and that all deliberations of the Council and any of the decision-making
bodies of the City of Zanesville which resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to
the public in compliance with all legal requirements of the State of Ohio.
SECTION FIVE: For the reasons stated herein, this Ordinance is declared to be
an emergency measure. Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more members of
City Council, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

PASSED: - - - - - - - - - - - ' 2022.

ATTEST:

BILLIE CORNS
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 2022.

DON MASON
MAYOR
THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-117
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE CONSENTING TO AN EXPEDITED TYPE TWO ANNEXATION
PETITION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, An expedited type two annexation petition has been filed with the Clerk of
the Muskingum County Commissioners on August 11 th , 2022 to annex approximately 2.33 acres
as described in Exhibit A of this Ordinance from Falls Township to the City of Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, The agent of the Muskingum County Commissioners delivered the
annexation petition to the City of Zanesville Clerk of Council on August 11 th , 2022 (Exhibit A);
and
WHEREAS, The Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023 (C) requires within twenty-five
(25) days after the petition is filed, the legislative authority shall adopt an ordinance stating
consent or objection to the annexation; and
WHEREAS, Failure to pass this Ordinance in a timely manner would result in the City
being out of compliance with the rules and regulations set forth in the Ohio Revised Code.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio; that:
SECTION ONE: The City of Zanesville, Ohio hereby consents to the expedited
type two annexation petition as attached in Exhibit A.
SECTION TWO: Due to the filing requirements of Section 709.023 (C) of the
Ohio Revised Code, this Ordinance shall be filed by the Clerk of Council with the Muskingum
County Board of Commissioners no later than September 5th , 2022.
SECTION THREE: It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of
this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open
meeting of Council and that all deliberations of the Council and any of the decision-making
bodies of the City of Zanesville which resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to
the public in compliance with all legal requirements of the State of Ohio.
SECTION FOUR: For the reasons stated herein, this Ordinance is declared to be
an emergency measure. Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more members of
City Council, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-117

PASSED:

_________

_,

2022.

ATTEST:
BILLIE CORNS
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 2022.

DON MASON
MAYOR
THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE
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•

Mollie S. Crooks

v.

m,;gpJ)_ss(, L- muskingu n_1s2un1 ,1rg,

•

James W. Porter
j~·prrter{ll'. mus.kingun1county._9r_g

• Susan Reese
Clerk

COMMISSIONERS

• Cindy S. Cameron
cscamercn1ta,muskingumi.:ou11tv.org

401 Main Street. Zanesville. Ohio 43701-3519

RES 22-0797
The following action was taken by the Board of Muskingum County Commissioners at
its meeting today, August 11, 2022:

A RESOLUTION TO ENfER PETITION FOR EXPEDITED TYPE 2 ANNEXATION
ONTO THE JOURNAL OF THE BOARD OF MUSKINGUM COUN1Y COMMISSIONERS
UNDER OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 709.023 TO ANNEX REAL ESTATE TO THE
CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OlllO OWNED BY BRYAN H. GRAHAM AND BE1H A.
GRAHAM-FALLS TOWNSHIP, MUSKINGUM COUNTY, omo
It was moved by Commissioner Porter, seconded by Commissioner Cameron, that this
Board of County Commissioners, Muskingum County, Ohio adopts the following resolution:
BE IT RESOLVED, that this Board of County Commissioners of Muskingum County,
Ohio does hereby enter petition onto the Journal of the Board of Muskingum County
Commissioners for Expedited Type 2 Annexation Petition under the Ohio Revised Code Section
709.023 to;mmex. real estate to the City of Zanesville, Ohio owned by Bryan H. Graham and Beth
A. Graham Sla"led as the sole owners of the 2.33 acre parcel described in the Annexation
Description as Exhibit A and Plat as Exhibit B. The agent appointed for this annexation request
is Kem Keitch. Esq., of Porter Wright Morris & Arthur, LLP as required under Ohio Revised
Code Section 709.02.
(see attached)

Roll call: Crooks, aye; Porter, aye; Cameron, aye.
sr
cc: Andy Roberts, GIS
Kent Keitch, Esq; ; ;, ·· ! . , . ··
Matt Schley, Community Development;

Motion carried.
Copied on: i. \1.19.
Copied b y- :~~, -

~ugustl~,ii

- -~·- tLU1 ~u~

Commissionern• Clerk';ep~ Clerk

740-455-7100 • Fax 740-455-3785

Muskingum Co11nty is an equal opportunity proYider and employer.
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PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 2.33 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, FROM FALLS

TOWNSHIP IN MUSKIINGUM COUNTY, omo TO THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE,

omo UTILIZING THE SPECIAL PROCEDURE OF R.C. SECTION 709.023·ET SEQ.
(EXPEDITED TYPE 2 ANNEXATION)

TO:

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF MUSKINGUM COUNTY, omo

Now comes the undersigned petitioners, being all of the owners of certain property as
hereinafter described and request that their property be annexed to the City of Zanesville, Ohio in
accordance with R.C. 709.023. The territory proposed for annexation contains 2.33 acres, more or
less, in Falls Township, Muskingum County Ohio, and is contiguous to the boundary of the City
of Zanesville, Ohio, for 5% or more of the perimeter of the territory proposed for annexation. The
undersigned understand the property will not be excluded from the township.
An accurate description of the territory sought to be annexed is attached hereto and made
11
a part hereof as Exhibit "A • A map, plat, or survey of the above-described territory sought to be
annexed is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit 11 B11 •
In accordance with R.C. 709 .023, the proposed Annexation is consistent with the following
requirements:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)
(v)

The territory proposed to be annexed shares a contiguous boundary with the City
of Zanesville for a continuous length of at least 5% of the perimeter of the territory
proposed to be annexed pursuant to R.C. 709.023(E)(4).
The territory proposed to be annexed does not exceed 500 acres pursuant to R.C.
709 .023(E)(3 ).
The proposed annexation will not create an unincorporated area of the township
that is completely surrounded by the territory proposed to be annexed pursuant to
R.C. 709 .023(E)(5).
No street or highway will be divided or segmented by the boundary line between
the municipality and township.
The number of owners in the territory sought to be annexed is two (2) and the
numbers of owners who signed the petition is two (2).

The owners who signed this petition by their signature expressly waive their right to appeal
in law or equity from the board of county commissioners' entry of any resolution passed under
R.C. 709.023 and waive any right they may have to sue on any issue relating to a municipal
corporation requiring a buffer as provided in R.C. 709.023 and further waive any rights to seek a
variance that would relieve or exempt them from that buffer requirement.
Kent Keitch, Esq. (contact information below), is hereby appointed agent for the
undersigned petitioners, as required by R.C. 709.02; and said petitioners' agent is hereby
authorized to make any amendments and/or deletions which in bis absolute and complete
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discretion are proper under the circumstances then existing. In addition, the petitioners' agent is
authorized to make such amendments and/or deletions in this petition, map, survey, plat or
description in order to correct any discrepancy or mistake noted by the County Engineer or others
in their examination of the petition, map, plat or description. Amendments to correct the map,
survey, plat or description may be made by the presentation of an amended map or plat and
description to the Board of County Commissioners on, before or after the date set for hearing of
this petition unless otheiwise specified by law.
Kent Keitch, Esq.
Porter Wright Morris & Arthur, LLP
41 South.High Street, Suite 3100
Columbus, Ohio 43215
Phone: (614) 227-1918
Fax: (614) 227-2100
Email: \.~~ ~·:'01.: '.,:.,;_:,::s:.,r..:-,-..-,i: ..:::-i~.c0:'.1

"WHOEVER SIGNS TIDS PETITION EXPRESSLY WAIVES THEIR RIGHT TO
APPEAL IN LAW OR EQUITY FROM THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMSSIONERS'
ENTRY OF ANY RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO TIDS SPECIAL ANNEXATION
PROCEDURE, ALTHOUGH A WRIT OF MANDAMUS MAY BE SOUGHT TO
COMPEL THE BOARD TO PERFORM ITS DUTIES REQUIRED BY LAW FOR TIDS
SPECIAL ANNEXATION PROCEDURE."

ADDRESS

NAME

[l~

DATE

it ._,A.A.,_ 3605 Greenbriar Drive, Zanesville, OH 43701

Bryan H. Graham

\-1:1:tJlJ'.l .~ 0 5 Greenbriar Drive, Zanesville, OH 43701
Beth A. Graham

8'~ q-~-a
Date
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EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
2.33 Acres for Annexation from
Falls Township to the City of Zanesville
Situ•ted in the State of Ohio, County of KWikl.nsua, Tollll8h1.p of Falla.
Being a part of Qt.larter Tovnabip 1, lowehip l, Range 8 bounded and deacribed
follows:

BB

iron pln fo1uid at Point "G't as ehow on ehe Road Dedication Pl.at
GreenbTi&r Drive and. Rosewood Drive as recorded in Plat Boak 16 1 Pages 118
and 119; THUCE Horth 5 degreea ~l minutes 30 seconds Eaat 180 feet to an iTon
pin _foWld on the south line of Greenbrl•r Dr1Yei THBNCE alons the south Une of
Greenbriar Drive South 84 degrees 08 mlDQ~es 30 se~onds East 17 fe~~ to an iron
pin; THE.~CE along said Greenbriar Dri•e on a curve to the left bavi~g a red1~•
of 50 feet an arc length of 10.34 f~et (the ~bord af ~hich bears Horth 55 dearees

Beiinnins at u
FGr:

· 32 minutes 50 seconds F..lst 64.68 feet) to a wood guardrail post; thence South
. '14 deareH 44 ll'iftut•• 38 &9COIUls Int 96.38 feet to th& center of II Manhold.
Lid1 i'DIEJIC£ SHth 77 dtlateea 29 •t:rwte• 19 uconu Ea1t 183964 fMt to- the cente,
of a ~old Lida 'llt!IC!. ,Seuth 56 4ear••• 56 • tnute• 18 &eeftnds ia1t 404.36 feet
t o • tron pin found at Point ttil" on the aforesaid iledieaU.on platt 'fflBNCl aloa1
the Mortb r.otporation Un of tlle City-of 1.ann1fille North 84dearee•0811innte1
30 HCGnda West. 703-47 feet: to U1e place of beata• bao containing ho and tlurty. thr.e hundredth.a (2.33) ~ru.., aore or 1....
Parcel No: 17-29-01-40-030
Address: 3605 Greenbriar Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701

Attachment to Ordinance 2022-117

EXHIBITB

MAP/SURVEY
.

:.,.
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EXHIBITC

PROPERTY TO BE ANNEXED

I)

Parcel No.17-29-01-40-030 aka 3605 Greenbriar Drive
-Property Owner: Bryan H_ and Beth A. Graham
-Tax Mailing Address: 3605 Greenbriar Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
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EXHIBITD
PARCELS ADJACENT TO ANNEXATION

Parcel No.17-29-01--40-021 aka 1760 Aspen Drive

1)

-Property Owner: Michael Kaido
-Tax Mailing Address: 1700 Aspen Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701

Parcel No. 17-29-01-40-024 aka Aspen Drive

2)

-Property Owner: Michael Kaido
-Tax Mailing Address: 1700 Aspen Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701

Parcel No. 17-29-01-40-008 aka 3615 Greenbriar Drive

3)

-Property Owner: Roger D. and Jennifer A. Ward
-Tax Mailing Address: 3615 Greenbriar Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701

4)

Parcel No. 17-29-01-40-0IS aka 3650 Rosewood Drive
-Property Owner: Mark E. Feldner
-Tax Mailing Address: 3650 Rosewood Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701

5)

Parcel No.17-29-01-40-041 aka 3620 Greenbriar Drive
-Property Owner: William and Elizabeth Kline
-Tax Mailing Address: 3620 Greenbriar Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701

6)

Parcel No. 86-32-01-01-012 aka 3605 Greenbriar Drive

-Property Owner: Bryan H. and Beth A. Graham
-Tax Mailing Address: 3605 Greenbriar Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
7)

Parcel No. 86-32-01-01-001 aka Brandywine Boulevard
-Property Owner: BHAM Enterprises LLC
-Tax Mailing Address: 3605 Greenbriar Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701

21174026vl

Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-118
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED
TO AND THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF ANNEXED PROPERTY AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, An expedited type 2 annexation petition has been filed with the Clerk of the
Muskingum County Commissioners to annex approximately 2.33 acres (as described in
Ordinance 2022-117) from Falls Township to the City of Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, The agent of the Muskingum County Commissioners delivered the
annexation petition to the City of Zanesville Clerk of Council on August 11 th , 2022 as described
in Ordinance 2022-117; and
WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023 (C) requires within twenty (20)
days after the petition is filed, the legislative authority shall adopt an ordinance stating what
municipal services the municipal corporation will provide to the territory proposed for
annexation; and
WHEREAS, Section One of this ordinance outlines the municipal services that shall be
provided to the proposed territory if annexed; and
WHEREAS, The Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023 (C) requires a statement that the
existing zoning of the property under the Falls Township Zoning Resolution shall be compatible
with the Municipal Zoning Standards or adequate screening and buffering as defined by Section
709.023 (C) is included in the development plan; and
WHEREAS, Failure to pass this Ordinance as an emergency would result in the City
being out of compliance with the rules and regulations set forth in the Ohio Revised Code.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio; that:
SECTION ONE: Municipal services to be provided to the subject properties (as
described in Ordinance 2022-117) shall include but are not limited to the following: water
service, sanitary sewer service, storm sewer services, Zanesville City Police, and Zanesville City
Fire Department services. Additionally, comprehensive planning and zoning services shall be
provided under Part Eleven of the City of Zanesville Codified Ordinances. Services are subject
to the availability of existing infrastructure.
SECTION TWO: In accordance with Chapter 1125.04 of the City of Zanesville
Codified Ordinances, the subject properties (as described in Ordinance 2022-117) shall retain the
zoning classification granted under the Falls Township Zoning Resolution once annexed. Within
thirty (30) days of execution of an annexation agreement, the City of Zanesville shall grant the
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zoning classification of RS-1 Low-Density Single Family Residential pursuant to the City of
Zanesville's Comprehensive Plan Objectives. The Property shall be subject to the landscaping
and screening standards set forth in Chapter 1151 of the City of Zanesville's Codified
Ordinances.

SECTION THREE: Due to the filing requirements of Section 709.023 (C) of the
Ohio Revised Code, this Ordinance must be filed by the Clerk of Council with the Muskingum
County Board of Commissioners no later than August 31st, 2022.
SECTION FOUR: It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of
this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open
meeting of Council and that all deliberations of the Council and any of the decision-making
bodies of the City of Zanesville which resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to
the public in compliance with all legal requirements of the State of Ohio.
SECTION FIVE: For the reasons stated herein, this Ordinance is declared to be
an emergency measure. Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more members of
City Council, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

PASSED: - - - - - - - - - - ' 2022.

ATTEST:

BILLIE CORNS
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 2022.

DON MASON
MAYOR
TIDS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee

ORDINANCE NO. 2022 - 119
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH ZANESVILLE
(NEWARK) DG LLC
WHEREAS, Zanesville (Newark} DG LLC (referred to herein as the "Property Owner") has
the contractual right to annex approximately 2.25 acres(+/-) of land; and
WHEREAS, The Property Owner initiated contact with the City of Zanesville regarding the
future annexation of 2.25 (+/-) acres of land (depicted on Exhibit A) into the corporate boundaries
of the City of Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, the property is not currently contiguous with the City of Zanesville but has
requested access to Municipal Services to complete the development thus a pre-annexation
agreement is necessary; and
WHEREAS, The Property Owner is willing to execute a Pre-Annexation Agreement
(depicted on Exhibit A and referred to herein as the "Agreement") with the City of Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, the property is currently vacant land in unincorporated Falls Township; and
WHEREAS, all costs associated with the future formal annexation process shall be borne by
The Property Owner.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council ofthe City of Zanesville, State of Ohio,
that:
SECTION ONE: The Proper City Officials are hereby authorized to execute a Pre-annexation
Agreement, attached as "Exhibit A" with Zanesville (Newark) DG LLC for the following Muskingum
County Parcel Number:
Auditors Parcel #17-79-02-10-001 recorded in Deed Volume 3084, Page(s) 610 - 613, with
said Deed Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
SECTION TWO: This Council hereby finds and determines that all formal actions relative to
the adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all
deliberations of this Council and of its committees, if any, which resulted in formal action, were
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taken in meetings open to the public, in full compliance with applicable legal requirements,
including Section 121.22 ofthe Revised Code.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.

PASSED:

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __,2022

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

Billie Corns,
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent,
President of Council

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __,2022

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED AS TO FORM

Don Mason,
Mayor

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE
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PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

1~

Thi Pre-Annexation Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into this
day of
-+,,..,_.___,,_____, 2022, by and between the City of Zanesville, Ohio , an Ohio municipal
corpor ion organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Ohio
(hereinafter the "City",) and Zanesville (Newark) DG LLC (hereinafter the "Landowner"), under
the circumstances summarized in the following recitals.
RECITALS:
WHEREAS, Landowner owns approximately 2.25 acres(+/-) of land located at 1158 Newark
Road, Zanesville, Ohio, Muskingum County Tax Parcel number 17-79-02-10-001 which land is
depicted on Exhibit A (and referred to herein as the "Property"), which is located out of the
corporation limits of the City; and
WHEREAS , the parties recognize that it is the policy of the City of Zanesville that it will only
extend water services outside the City limits if the property owner agrees to file a petition for
annexation with the Muskingum County Commissioners at such a time as requested by the City
of Zanesville ; and
WHEREAS, the City has authorized the proper City official to negotiate for and enter into an
agreement to provide water services for the Property.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, it is ag reed as
follows:

1.
The Landowner is hereby permitted to make one commercial connection to the City of
Zanesville's water system, as an "outside" City customer.

2.
Landowner agrees to pay all costs associated with the construction of the connection to
the City's water system , including tapping charges, if any.
3.
It is the responsibility of the Landowner, his successors or assigns, upon letter of
notification by the City to file petition with the County Commissioners for full annexation of said
property, within the timeframe specified by the City. Landowner agree to bear all costs
associated with the annexation application proceedings.
4.
It is the intent of this provision of the agreement that the City is agreeing to provide water
service to the referenced lot at 1158 Newark Road, Zanesville, Ohio, Muskingum County Tax
Parcel number 17-79-02-10-001 on these conditions and that this agreement runs with the land
and is binding on any successors in title to the property. Description of said property is situated
in the County of Muskingum, State of Ohio, and Falls Township, bounded and described as
follows:

DEED REFERENCE: (BK 3084, PG 610 - 613)
5.
Upon receipt of the City's notification to the property owner to file a petition with the
County Commissioners for full annexation, the City hereby agrees to assign a zoning
classification that aligns with the intent of the property's development plan.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized representatives this _ _ day of _ _ _ _ _ , 2022.

CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO

By:_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

Printed: Scott Brown
Title: Public Service Director
By: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

Printed: Matthew Schley
Title: Community Development Director

LANDOWNER

B ~
Pn
Title: Owner
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STATE OF ALABAMA, COUNTY OF JEFFERSON, SS
Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above
named Zanesville {Newark) DG LLC, represented by Danielle E. Yance, who acknowledged that
they did sign the foregoing agreement and that the same is their free act and deed in such
capacity.

IN TESTIMON't-HEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal in Jefferson County, OH, this
, 2022.

_1L day of c)v L~

---Notary Public
Approved As To Form

DAVID TARBERT,
City Law Director
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DEEDED LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
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Community Development
Matthew Schley, Director

ORDINANCE NO. 2022 - 120
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT
FUNDING
WHEREAS, The United States Congress passed the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) on
March 10, 2021, and President Joe Biden signed into law on March 11, 2021 ; and
WHEREAS, The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) created the Local Fiscal Recovery Fund to
provide funding to all cities and counties throughout the nation; and
WHEREAS, ARP A has identified low-to-moderate income housing construction and
rehabilitation as an eligible use of funds; and
WHEREAS, The City of Zanesville has received a proposal from Habitat for Humanity of
Southeast Ohio in the amount of $275,000.00; and
WHEREAS, Funding would be utilized to complete fifteen (15) total housing projects which
would ultimately house a minimum of fifteen (15) families by the end of 2026; and
WHEREAS, The City has identified strategies to combat housing shortages throughout the City
in the 2019 Housing Needs Assessment and the City of Zanesville Comprehensive Plan.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio that:
SECTION ONE: The Proper City Officials are hereby authorized to draft and execute a grant
agreement with Habitat for Humanity within the scope and metrics of the Habitat for Humanity ARPA
Proposal (Exhibit A).
SECTION TWO: The proper City Officials are hereby authorized to review, audit, and execute
draws and expenses upon the successful execution of a grant agreement (as outlined in Section One)
against a total grant award of $275,000.00 which shall be paid for out of Line #354-7951-56185 and shall
be expended in accordance with the U.S. Department of the Treasury Final Rule and all applicable Local,
State, and Federal Law.
SECTION THREE: This Council hereby finds and determines that all formal actions relative to
the adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of
this Council and of its committees, if any, which resulted in formal action, were taken in meetings open to
the public, in full compliance with applicable legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Revised
Code.
SECTION FOUR; This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.
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tfft Habitat for Humanity®
Organization Details
of Southeast Ohio
Name and Role of Person Submitting Application:
Kenneth Oehlers - Executive Director & Melissa Best - Community Engagement Director

E-Mail: melissa@habitatseo.org
Phone: 740-592-0032 ext. 103

Muskingum

rmMailing Address: Habitat for Humanity of Southeast Ohio
100 Sunrise Center Dr.
Zaneville, Oh 43701

Noble

Fairfield

Parr,
Morgim

il't

EIN Number: 31-1286856
Website: habitatseo.org

Hocking

Athens

.lfr

Mission

M1lg,

Habitat for Humanity of Southeast Ohio (HFHSEO) works in
partnership with families and communities to help bring strength,
stability, and self-reliance through shelter. Since 1990, HFHSEO has
developed programs through these partnerships to meet housing needs within the communities we serve.

Service Area
HFHSEO currently serves an 8 county area with its offices in Athens, Lancaster, and Zanesville, Ohio.

History
HFHSEO, an affiliate of Habitat for Humanity International, was founded and incorporated in 1990 as a 501 (c) 3 nonprofit builder of affordable homes for and with low-income families, mandated to build in eight counties in Southeast
Ohio. HFHSEO operates under the same guidelines and mission as Habitat for Humanity International and has recently
nd
completed its I 02 Habitat home.
HFHSEO functioned as an all-volunteer organization until 1999 when it hired its first Executive Director. Currently, the
affiliate works with volunteers, a small staff, and the assistance of groups like the Faith Build Coalition, the Ohio
University Chapter, and the Women Raise the Roof Coalition (WRTR), which is a coalition of women responsible for
their own fundraising and construction of Habitat homes for the affiliate.
Currently, Habitat for Humanity of Southeast Ohio has fo ur construction-related programs it operates in The City of
Zanesville:
1. Homeownership - The HFHSEO Homeownership Program works in partnership with low-income families to
provide new, decent, affordable owner-occupied housing. Families partner with Habitat must have a housing
need, must complete educational classes, complete sweat equity, and pay a zero-interest mortgage. Families
must also have an income between 30-60% of the Area Median Income. As part of our Homeownership
Program, HFHSEO is focused on neighborhood revitalization in partnership with other organizations like the
Muskingum County Land Banl<.
2.

Critical Home Repair -The Critical Home Repair program provides zero-interest loans of up to $10,000 to
complete critical home repairs to owner-occupied housing. Families do not have to be current Habitat
homeowners to qualify for the program but must own their home. Families must have a need, complete sweat
equity, and pay a zero-interest loan. Families must also have an income between 20%-80% of the Area
Median Income.
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City of Zanesville ARPA

Funding Request
'1ftHabitat
'
for Humanity®
of Southeast Ohio

A Proposal to Work in Partnership with
Habitat for Humanity SEO to Build Strength, Stability
& Self-Reliance Through Shelter in The City ofZanesville!
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3. Microfinance Program - The Microfinance Program is designed to reduce the need for payday lenders and
rent-to-own operations by providing capital to low-income families so that they can improve their quality of
life around housing sustainability. Families who qualify must make 20%-80% of the Area Median Income
and must pay a zero-interest loan back to Habitat. The max loan for the Microfinance Program is $2,000 paid
directly to vendors. Loans can be used to repair or maintain an owner-occupied home, repair a car, or
purchase medical equipment.
4. Career Center Partnership - HFHSEO is proud to partner with Career Centers throughout our region to help
educate the contractors of tomorrow in quality construction trade work. As part of our collaboration, Career
Centers work in partnership with Habitat to build homes for families in need. These projects provide primary
skill training in the trades while also providing other educational benefits that cannot be taught in a classroom
setting. HFHSEO is proud to have already partnered with Mid-East Career Center on the construction of 5
homes in The City of Zanesville.

With all HFHSEO housing programs, funds are required to be paid back through a zero-interest mortgage and/or loan.
HFHSEO firmly believes in empowering families through our ''hand up, not a hand out" model. All mortgage payments
are recycled back into our housing programs to provide additional housing repair loans, mieroloans, and funds for new
home builds.

Housing Needs
The United States housing stock is in a state of crisis. Due to aging housing stock and an inability (for many reasons) to
repair and maintain the current stock, homes are becoming unlivable. In addition, the United States is not building
enough housing units to keep up with demand. Between 1968 and 2000, the USA built an average of 1.5 million new
housing units every year_ In the past 20 years, the USA has only averaged between 1.1 and 1.25 million new housing
units per year. As of today, the USA needs an additional 6 million housing units to meet new housing needs and replace
units that have been damaged or destroyed.
While the USA has a deficit of housing in every housing sector, none is more prevalent than affordable housing. Housing
affordability is defined as paying less than 30% of a family's income on housing. As our housing issues have beeome
more prevalent, the aruount of low-to-moderate income families who lack affordable housing has continued to climb. In
2019, 47% of all renter households (regardless of income) are paying over 30% of their income on housing with 24%
paying over 50% of their total income on housing.
One of the reasons for affordability issues is that over the past 15 years, housing prices have risen faster than income.
From 2011 to 2017, median household income rose by 17%. During that same time, median home prices rose by 42%.
This has created an ever-widening gap that is difficult for many low-income and middle-income families to overcome.
While this housing crisis existed before COVID-19, the pandemic created even more issues in the housing sector. Due to
demand, the entire housing stock saw a significant increase in Fair Market Value. This increased not only the cost to
purchase a home but also rent. Prior to the pandemic, rent increased an average of2-3% yearly. In 2021, rent in the
United States increased 14% on average, with many families seeing two or more rent increases in one year. This increase
was more than double the largest annual increase on record before 2021. Today, only in 7 counties throughout the United
States can a minimum wage worker afford the rent for a decent 1 bedroom apartment.
Housing Needs in The City of Zanesville
The City of Zanesville has not been insulated from these issues. In fact, several issues are further compounded due to the
increase in population, economic development, and deterioration of housing stock over the last l Oyears. Further
compounding the issue is the rising cost of rent in the region. Before COVID-19, average rents were increasing yearly,
but the pandemic has accelerated these increases.
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Another significant issue in The City of Zanesville is the lack of decent housing stock priced below $130,000. This is
primarily due to the lack of housing created at that price level, as well as increased property values. A good example of
this is a Habitat home recently sold to a family. Based on a third-party appraisal, the fair market value of this 4 bedroom
home was $220,000. While HFHSEO did not charge the family fair market value (HFHSEO provides repayable
mortgages at no-profit), a private developer or home seller will not do the same. If this home was sold for its fair market
value, with the current interest rate, the monthly mortgage payment (including taxes & insurance) would be $1,500 per
month. For this mortgage to be considered "affordable" the family would have to have an income of over $60,000 per
year. For many families in The City of Zanesville, especially single parents, this makes owning a home completely
impossible throughout the course of their life.
While housing stock exists below $130,000 in The City of Zanesville, it is impossible for most low to moderate-income
homebuyers to purchase. This is primarily due to the property being disqualified from FHA loans because of issues with
the home. Due to high demand for this level of priced housing (both from homebuyers and investors), sellers often refuse
to pay for the repairs and will sell the home to a cash buyer or someone who does not need FHA financing.
Contractor Shortages in The City of Zanesville
Another issue plaguing the housing market in The City of Zanesville is the shortage of qualified contractors throughout
Southeast Ohio. Nationwide, there is currently a need for over 2 million additional residential contractors. This number
will only increase as a significant amount of contractors have reached or will soon reach retirement age. This shortage has
made it difficult for families to find and afford quality contractor services. This in turn leads to the current housing stock
falling into a state of disrepair.
Lack of Affordable Capital for Low-Income Families
In the 1970's Habitat for Humanity began in Americus, Georgia at Koinonia Farm. The owner of Koinonia Farm,
Clarence Jordan, is famously quoted as saying "What the poor need is capital, not charity''. This is true now more than
ever.
One of the biggest barriers for low-income families is access to affordable capital. In our financial system, low-income
families are viewed as a higher risk. This is due to their lower-income, type of work, inconsistent schedules, or other risk
factors associated with an individual family. Due to this risk, low-income families are either denied access to capital or
are forced to pay significantly higher interest rates for traditional loan products. Those who are denied, are forced to go to
payday lenders and other predatory actors within our community. These lenders are often charging well over 18% interest
and for small loans as much as 200% interest when accounting for loan charges.
Another capital barrier is in grants and funding available for affordable housing development. Currently, almost all
subsidized funding for affordable housing is provided for the creation of rental housing. Studies have shown that one of
the best ways for families to climb out of poverty is through ownership of a home; however, there exists little government
funding for homeownership programs. In addition, there are also very few programs that provide affordable capital for
low-income homeowners who need to repair their homes. Without this capital, low-income homeowners are forced to let
their homes fall into a state of disrepair. Often, these low-income families are our most vulnerable residents and include
seniors and the disabled. In The City of Zanesville, HFHSEO is currently the only program providing access to this
much-needed capital.
Housing's Impact on Health, Wellness & Education
Where we live is at the core of our daily lives. According to a study conducted by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation,
people spend two-thirds of their daily lives indoors, most of which is in their own homes. Good health depends on having
housing that is free from hazards such as lead paint, water leaks, poor ventilation, and blight within a neighborhood. The
lack of affordable housing forces families to make choices that most certainly affect their health.
Having a decent, affordable, and safe place to call home also significantly affects the wellness and educational attainment
of children within a household. According to the National Center for Healthy Housing, having an affordable place to live
3
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provides stability and eliminated unwanted moves which lead to educational disruption and changes for children. In
addition, an affordable place to call home also significantly reduces the chance that a family will become homeless and
displaced, further impacting the educational attainment and wellness of children from all age groups.

Proposal
As stated above, HFHSEO is the only program within The City of Zanesville to provide affordable homeownership and
repair capital to low-to-moderate income families. HFHSEO recognizes the incredible need for housing services and is
working to grow to address this need. While HFHSEO has built the staffing and community relationships necessary to
increase our capacity, the missing piece that can bring it all together is the funding for projects. This request will provide
the catalyst to pennanently increase HFHSEO's capacity to serve more families throughout The City of Zanesville.
HFHSEO is requesting $275,000 in ARPA funding to be used to complete 15 total projects in The City of Zanesville and
training to over 350 students in construction career trades by utilizing our homeownership program. Of these 15 projects,
none will be fully funded by the ARPA funds. HFHSEO will utilize this funding as a challenge grant to other funders as a
way to build additional relationships and partnerships that will lead to sustainable fundraising after the successful
completion of the activities within this proposal. All projects will be completed by December 3 l, 2026. Our proposal is
broken down into two sections:
l.

HFHSEO will build or rehab at least 6 homes in The City of Zanesville. The locations of these homes will be
decided in partnership with The City of Zanesville in order to create opportunities for additional revitalization
opportunites in selected areas, utilizing additional funding sources from The City of Zanesville and other local
partners, in addition to donated land from the City or the Muskingum County Land Bank. This number represents
the minimum amount of homes we will build within the time period. With additional funding from outside
sources, our intent is to build more.
At least 3 of these homes will be built in partnership with Mid-East Career Center, or another local trade program
or apprenticeship.
This funding will also allow HFHSEO to potentially develop other types of housing projects that it has never
pursued, but belives might create more impact for families if implemented its homeownership program moving
forward. These types of projects include:
Duplex Housing - HFHSEO belives that we will be able to provide more homeownership opportunities
for lower income citizens through duplexes. HFHSEO believes that by building a duplex, construction costs per
unit can be lowered. AJ,, part of this project, HFHSEO would build at least one duplex and determine if duplex
housing should continue to be develoed by HFHSEO in Zanesville.
Housing Rehab - HFHSEO has never remodeled existing homes as part of our homeownership program.
With this funding, HFHSEO would acquire at least one home, remodel it, and sell it to a low-income family. As
part of this HFHSEO will measure the feasibility (timeline, cost, and ability for volunteers to work on the project)
and will look at whether home remodels should be included in our homeownership program moving forward.

2. In addition, HFHSEO will complete at least 9 Critical Home Repais within The City of Zanesville. These repairs
will be made on homes not owned by Habitat homeowners. These funds will be used to supplement our current
Critical Home Repair funding so that we can expand our maximum project cost from $ 10,000 to $15,000. This
extra $5,000 will not require a repayment back to HFHSEO. It is important to note that 90% of the Critical Home
Repair requests HFHSEO receives are from seniors or other special needs families.
3. Lastly, while not included in the proposed project's proposed numbers, the repayment of these funds by
homeowners throughout the grant period will allow us to complete an additional 5 projects through our Critical
Home Repair or Microfinance Programs.
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People Supervising Project
Kenneth Oehlers - Executive Director of HFHSEO and has been the Director for 11 years. Ken holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Business Administration and Organization Leadership. Ken has overseen a 500% increase in the number of families
served annually through HFHSEO programs. Ken has completed mortgage servicing training and is qualified to close and
service mortgages. Lastly, Ken has provided consultations and presentations to other Habitat affiliates to help them
increase their impact on their local communities.
Chelsie Frazier - Director of Family Services for HFHSEO. She oversees all application intake, qualifying, underwriting,
education, and servicing of all HFHSEO programs and mortgages. Chelsie manages a mortgage portfolio for HFHSEO
with a less than 2% payment delinquency with a 0% delinquency in our Critical Home Repair and Microfinance
Programs. Chelsie has received mortgage servicing certification through the American Banking Association.
Cody Rutter - Director of Construction for HFHSEO. Cody has been in the construction industry for the past 25 years
both as an employee and a business owner. Cody has built over 40 homes as Construction Director of Habitat for
Humanity of Southeast Ohio.
Melissa Best - Director of Community Engagement in Muskingum County for HFHSEO. Melissa oversees all of our
fundraising, public relations, advocacy, and community partnerships. Melissa has been responsible for developing
strategies to grow our capacity leading by creating win-win opportunities for the community to engage in Habitat's work.

Project Budget
Below is the overall budget for the proposed activities within the proposal. Please review the attachment for a more
detailed breakdown of costs associated with each new home construction project.

Funding
Individual, Business & Church Contributions
Foundation Grants
Fundraising Events
Mortgage Revenue from Prior HFH Projects
Gifts-In-Kind
City of Zanesville ARPA Funding Ask

Operating Costs
Tools, Equipment & Career Center
Supplies
Salaries & Wages
Homeownership Projects
Other Housing Projects

Total Expenses

$

977,000

$

$
$
$

Total Funding

Expenses

$

392,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
10,000
275,000

$

Amount Requested
in Proposal

Total Project
Expenses
$

20,000

$

$

235,000
40,000

$
$

15,000
100,000
738,000
104,000

$

275,000

$

977,000

$
$

5

Ordinance 2022-120

Timeline
If approved, project will begin immediately this fall. We will also begin preperations for the construction of the duplex to
begin in Fall of 2023. In addition, we will be able to immediately commit projects to the Career Center for the next three
years. All projects will be completed by March, 2026, well before the required deadline for expenditure of ARPA funds.

Outcomes (Financial and Capacity Building for HFHSEO)
If approved, this funding will create multiple substantial positive outcomes for families in The City of Zanesville,
including but not limited to the following:
Qualitative Outcomes
1. Housing stock in The City of Zanesville will be improved and property values will be maintained or increased.
2. The capacity and quality of HFHSEO programs will be permanently increased.
3.

Increasing quality of contractors within our community through a partnership with trade schools.

4.

Increase in owner-occupied housing within target communities and neighborhoods.

5.

Generational poverty is broken within families served through homeownership.

6.

Improved safety and decreased crime in neigborhoods where HFHSEO programs are deployed.

Quantitative Outcomes
I. Over the funding period, over 350 trades students will receive an education. An additional 300 students will gain
exposure to various trades by becoming iuvolved with HFHSEO.
2.

Throughout the life of the mortgages from this investment, at least $600,000 in property tax revenue will be
generated through the activities listed in this proposal.

3. Over 4 ,000 community members will become involved in improving their community by participating in
HFHSEO programs.
4.

Over $977,000 will be invested in the community employing local residents, completing projects utilizing local
contractors, vendors, and suppliers.

5.

15 families will be provided with permanent housing solutions.

6. Homeownership contributes to higher standardized test scores in math, and for those with a longer
homeownership tenure, increased test scores in reading.•
*Haurin, D.; Parcel, T.; and Haurin, R. "The Impact of Home Ownership on Child Outcomes." Low-Income Homeownership Working Paper Series.
Published online March 15, 2000. doi:10.2139/ssrn.218969.

Social Return on Investment
In 2018, HFHSEO engaged The Voinovich School at Ohio University to help the organization measure it's the value of its
programs within the communities served. This type of study and measurement tool is known as Social Return on
Investment (SRO!). The traditional financial return on investment tools express financial returns to private investors and
are well understood in the business and capitalistic functions of our society. SROI is a similar measurement tool that
measures the economic value of social impact investment for returns to specific stakeholders or to society generally in
terms of costs avoided (such as increased healthcare costs) or benefits attained. SROI then provides these verifiable, databacked measures in the form of the financial-economic value of an organization's social impact.
SROI enables stakeholder accountability, data-driven investment decisions, strategic planning, and meaningful
stakeholder communications. As part of this study, all HFHSEO programs were measured and a final financial proxy of
6
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$59.04 for every dollar invested was determined for HFHSEO. Based on Ohio University's assessment of this databacked finding, the impact of this proposal would yield a fiscal proxy of $16,236,000 to The City of Zanesville over a 30
year period (the typical life of an HFHSEO mortgage). If you would like more information, please do not hesitate to
request this from us.

Precedent for funding Habitat with ARPA funding
HFHSEO is asking for this amount of funding after careful research, discussion, and evaluation of our current programs in
The City of Zanesville. HFHSEO is confident that with this funded proposal we can complete the projects identified and
achieve the desired outcomes during the given time frame. Tliis type offunding is not unique throughout the United
States. While researching ARPA funding and Habitat for Humanity, several other Habitat affiliates across the United
States have been given ARPA funding for Habitat programs ranging from $167,000 to $3.5 million. Of these affiliates,
almost all of them are located in municipalities with housing issues similar to The City of Zanesville.

Alignment with ARPA Funding Priority
Signed into law in March 2021, The American Rescue Plan Act of202 l (ARPA) was designed to provide funding for
eligible uses including '"negative economic impacts of COVID-19, including assistance to small businesses and
households". This fuoding is to be used to address issues for ''impacted households". Recently, the US Department of
Treasury adopted their final rule related to ARPA funding that specifically mentioned affordable housing programs as an
eligible funding category. ln addition, the final rule specifically defined •'impacted households'' as " tow-to-moderate
income households or communities", which is the population with which HFHSEO exclusively works in The City of
Zanesville. Lastly, the final rule specifically mentions using funds for services ''that primarily increase access to
affordable, high-quality housing and support stable housing and homeownership over the long term".
Even before the pandemic, The City of Zanesville was facing a growing housing issue that tliroughout COVID-19 has
turned into a crisis that several government officials throughout the county have outlined as one of the primary threats to
the county over the next 10 years. HFHSEO is one of the only organizations in a position to make a substantial housing
impact for ·'low-to-moderate income" and ''workforce" populations.

Project Effectiveness Evaluation Metrics
HFIISEO utilizes various evaluation metrics and tools to measure the effectiveness of our programs and to adj ust our
operations, if necessary. We will be utilizing the same evaluation metrics with funding received from this proposal.
These include:
Evaluation of Family Qualification & Application Process - HFHSEO loo.ks at marketing efforts and the application
process itself. We will measure this against prior application amounts, as well as acceptance rates. We also measure the
effectiveness of our application process against other Habitat affiliates to look for ways co make the process easier on both
the applicant and administrative side. We also look at current economic factors to determine if we need to expand income
eligibility for housing programs.
Evaluation of House Design - HFHSEO is always evaluating its house design to ensure that homes are being built to
blend in within the neighborhood where the builds are occurring. In addition, evaluations also occur to detennine an
appropriate number of bedrooms & bathrooms so that home valuations within the neighborhood are not decreased by the
construction of a Habitat home. Evaluation strategies include speaking with appraisers, realtors, residents, and
community leaders to detennine appropriate approaches to housing design.
Evaluation of Housing Type - HFHSEO looks at the type of housing (single-family detached, multifamily, townhouses,
etc ... ) and adjusts its programs when necessary. Evaluation metrics include neighborhood characteristics, housing needs
within the community, zoning, existing infrastructure, and feedback regarding types of housing from community members
and local government leaders.

7
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Evaluation of Project Timeline - HFHSEO monitors the timeline on each project and makes adjustments to be more
efficient so that we can serve more families. Currently, HFHSEO works off of a 16-week build schedule once the
foundation is installed on each build s ite. HFHSEO utilizes a tracking system to log productivity on each build day. This
log is then used to identify ways to shorten the build timeline on each project.
Evaluation of Budget - HFHSEO looks for ways to save on project costs. Each dollar saved is a dollar that can be
allocated to an additional project in our community. While COVID-19 has created difficulty in predicting and evaluating
build costs, we continue to evaluate on a build-by-build basis. Our evaluation includes the identification of donors who
might be able to provide in-kind services to save on project costs.
E valuation of Career Center Students - HFHSEO utilizes required testing at the Career Centers for its evaluation of our
Career Center partnership. Each student has to pass trade program tests that certify their knowledge of their chosen trade.
In addition, HFHSEO monitors employment after graduation as an evaluation metric of our partnership.
Evaluation of Volunteer/Community Engagement & Effectiveness - HFHSEO measures the effect that our programs are
having on the community as a whole. ls the program meeting the societal objective that we want? Are we engaging
community members & volunteers in a way that inspires them to improve their community? This will be measured
through surveys, tracking, and looking at the improvement made by the partner family, both economically and in quality
oflife.
Evaluation of Effectiveness of Programs - Lastly, HFHSEO measures the effectiveness of the program itself as it relates
to the applicants selected to participate in the program by gathering feedback from partner families, community members,
and other stakeholders. Lastly, we will track project completion and repayment and compare this against similar
programs at other organizations. Metrics that are tracked will include acceptance rate, project completion timeliness,
payment delinquency, and payment defaults.
We take evaluations very serious ly as a way to adjust our programs and improve our organization so that we can continue
to serve more families in need. ln addition, HFHS EO can commit to providing reports and other requirements as needed
by ARP A administrators to ensure transparency and impact of the funding used.

Continuation Plan
One of the best benefits to the HFHSEO model is its ability to provide a " multiplier effect" to the funding that is provided
to HFHSEO. Each dollar that is allocated to HFHSEO programs is eventually repaid via a zero-interest loan and 100% is
recycled back into additional projeets. ARPA funding will recycle back into the community and will provide permanent
housing solutions to over 100 families within The City of Zanesville over a 15 year period through HFHSEO programs.

Conclusion
In conclusion, if you _fund HFHSEO' s project, it will not only ensure that the families impacted by the project are
provided with housing solutions, but will also impact many more families in the future. A partuership with HFHSEO
helps families build strength, stability, and self-reliance while also improving communities. Lastly, this partnership will
allow HFHSEO to permanently expand its capacity to serve more City of Zanesville families for many years to come.

8
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Attachments
Please see the attached supplemental information about HFHSEO programs, budget, and impacts of our programs:
Attachment A - Typical Habitat Home Construction Budget Detail
Attachment B - Excerpts from Treasury Final Rule re : Housing & Eligible Uses
Attachment C - Sample news articles from other USA ARPA awards to Habitat Affiliates
Attachment D - Testimonials from Current HFHSEO Homeowners
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Habitat for Humanity of Southeast Ohio
Typical Homeownership Construction Project Expenses

Insurance
Supervisor Wages
Permits/ Tap Fees/Etc ..
Survey
Foundation
Rough Framing/Floor System/Roof System
Exterior Finishes (inc. porches)
Mechanicals
Water/Sewer line Install
Drywall
Interior Finishes (Cabinets, Flooring, Trim. Etc ... )
Driveway/Sidewalk

$ 500.00
$ 4,000.00
$ 2,000.00
$ 500.00
$11,000.00
$15,000.00
$18,000.00
$28,000.00
$11,000.00
$6,000.00
$22,000.00
$ 5,000.00

Total Expenses

$123,000.00

3

Habitat for Humanity·
of Southeast Ohio
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Provisions: Other for additional eligibility standards that apply to uses of funds for capital
expenditures.
Note that this enumerated eligible use describes "emergency housing assistance," or
assistance for responses to the immediate or near-term negative economic impacts of the
pandemic. The final rule also clarifies and expands the ability of rec ipients to use SLFRF funds
to address the general lack of affordable housing and housing challenges underscored by the
pandemic. For discussion of affordable housing eligible uses, including services that primarily
increase access to affordable, high-quality housing and support stable housing and
homeownership over the long term, see the eligible use for " promoting long-tem1 housing
security: affordable housing and homelessness."

3. Emergency assistance for pressing needs: burials, home repairs, weatherization, or
other needs. The interim final rule included an enumerated eligible use for emergency assistance
for burials, home repairs, weatherization, and other needs; these types of programs may provide
emergency assistance for pressing and unavoidable household needs. Treasury did not receive
comments on this eligible use and is maintaining it in the final rule.

Background on Home Repairs and Weatherization: The economic downturn has meant
fewer households had the resources needed to make necessary home repairs and improvements.
In May 2021, 28 percent of landlords reported deferring maintenance and 27 percent of tenants
reported maintenance requests going unanswered. 114 While small and cosmetic repairs can often

114

Jung Hyun Choi, Laurie Goodman, and Daniel Pang, The Pandemic ls Making lt Difficult for Mom-and-Pop

Landlords to Maintain Their Properties, Urban Institute (July 23, 2021 ), https://www .urban.org/urbanwire/pandemic-making-it-di fficult-mo m-and-pop- landlords-ma in tain-thei r-properties.
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As detailed below, based on multiple public comments and questions and Treasury's
subsequent analysis, Treasury has determined that supportive housing or other programs or
services to improve access to stable, affordable housing among individuals who are homeless,
and the development of affordable housing to increase supply of affordable and high-quality
living units are responsive to the needs of impacted populations, not only disproportionately
impacted populations. This final rule reflects this clarification and builds on the objectives stated
in the interim final rule to improve access to stable, affordable housing, including through
interventions that increase the supply of affordable and high-quality living units, improve
housing security, and support durable and sustainable homeownership.
Finally, note that "emergency housing assistance," or assistance for responses to the
immediate negative economic impacts of the pandemic through services like financial assistance
for rental arrears or mortgage payments, is also an eligible use category for assistance to
households under the final rule; see the eligible use for "emergency housing assistance" above.
The provision of housing vouchers and assistance relocating to neighborhoods with higher levels
of economic opportunity remains an eligible use under assistance to disproportionately impacted
households; for discussion, see the eligible use for "housing vouchers and assistance relocating"
below.
Background: AJjordable Housing: It is clear that the ongoing pandemic and resulting

economic crisis are having a profound, long-tenn negative effect on the pre-existing affordable
housing crisis facing low-income households. 152 The combination of a large number of higherincome households who have weathered the pandemic without significant income losses, low
interest rates, and housing supply constraints exacerbated by the pandemic, have driven a sharp

52

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, Housing insecurity and the COVID-19 pandemic {March 2020),
https://files. consumerfinance .gov/f/documents/cfpb_ Housing_insecurity_and_ the_COVID-19_pandemic.pdf.
t
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Additionally, as noted above, Treasury is finalizing the rule with some changes to the
treatment of affordable housing development designed to clarify that permanent supportive
housing or other programs or services to improve access to stable, affordable housing among
individuals who are homeless, and the development of affordable housing to increase supply of
affordable and high-quality living units, are responsive to individuals and households that were
impacted by the pandemic in addition to those that were disproportionately impacted. This shift
is in line with commenters ' recommendations and consistent with the facts described above,
which demonstrate that lack of supply of affordable housing units contributed to the pandemic's
impact on housing insecw-ity and unsustainable housing cost burdens and that these impacts were
experienced broadly across the country.

Public Comment: Eligible Activities: Many commenters asked for clarity on what types
of activities (e.g., land acquisition, construction, pre-construction costs, operating costs, etc.) are
eligible uses of SLFRF, and what affordability criteria must be applied to affordable housing
development. Commenters encouraged Treasury to allow the full array of affordable housing
activities, including particular requests for broad flexibility for Tribal communities, and to
specify that "development" should include construction, preservation, rehabilitation, and
operation. Other commenters requested clarification about permissible program administration
approaches for affordable housing, such as contracting methods and distribution of func.1s.
Some commenters asked that Treasury require SLFRF funds to be focused on the lowestincome households, who suffer the most severe rent burdens and risks of housing instability, and
whose housing situation has left them particularly vulnerable to COVID-19. For example, one
commenter argued that SLFRF funds should only be used to support affordable housing for
households making 50 percent of AMI or less and that recipients should be required to set aside
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significant portions of any developments for renters making 30 percent of AMI or less and
persons with physical and sensory disabilities. Other commenters requested a more flexible
approach to affordable housing definitions.

Treasury Response: Eligible Activities: The final rule clarifies eligibility of affordable
housing development for recipients; these uses were eligible under the interim final rule, but
Treasury is providing further guidance to enhance clarity and respond to recipient and
commenter questions.
As with all interventions to address the negative economic impacts of the pandemic,
affordable housing projects m ust be responsive and proportional to the harm identified. This test
may be met by affordable housi ng development projects - which may involve large expenditures
and capital investments - if the developments increase the supply of long-term affordable
housing for low-income households. While there may be less costly (or non-capital) alternatives
to affordable housing development, a comprehensive response to the widespread housing
challenges underscored by the pandemic will require the production of additional affordable
homes, and targeted affordable housing development is a cost-effective and proportional
response to this need.
For purposes of this test, Treasury will presume that any projects that would be eligible
for funding under either the National Housing Trust Fund (HTF) or the Horne Investment
Partnerships Program (HOME) are eligible uses of SLFRF funds. Note that these programs use
different income limits than the definition of low- and moderate-income adopted by Treasury.
Given the severity of the affordable housing shortage, and the ways in which the pandemic has
exacerbated the need for affordable, high-quality dwelling units, Treasury has detem1ined that
the households served by these federal housing programs have been impacted by the pandemic
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and its negative economic impacts and that development of affordable housing consistent with
these programs is a related and reasonably proportional response to those impacts. Additionally,
affordable housing projects provided by a Tribal government are eligible uses of SLFRF if they
would be eligible for funding under the Indian Housing Block Grant program, the Indian
Community Development Block Grant program, or the Bureau of Indian Affairs Housing
[mprovement Program. Alignment with these programs, which define "affordable housing" in a
manner consistent with a proportionate response to the affordable housing challenges faced by
low- and moderate-income households as a result of the negative economic impacts of the
pandemic, is intended to give recipie nts comfort and clarity as they design a wide variety of
affordable housing interventions, including production, rehabilitation, and preservation of
affordable rental housing and, in some cases, affordable homeownership units. These programs
allow the financing of a wide range of affordable housing activities and set clear eligibility
criteria that many recipients are already familiar with .
.Finally, to further support sustainable and durable homeownership, recipients may
consider offering down payment assistance, such as through contributions to a homeowner's
equity at origination or that establish a post-closing, mortgage reserve account on behalf of the
borrower that may be utilized to make a missed or partial mortgage payment at any point during
the life of the loan (e.g., if the borrower faces financial stress). Homeownership assistance that

would be eligible under the Community Development Block Grant (at 24 CFR 507.20l(n)) is
also an eligible use of SLFRF funds.

Public Comment: Permanent Supportive Housing: Treasury has received comments
encouraging the use of S LFRF funds for.permanent supportive housing. This is an eligible use
under the interim final rule: both the development of affordable housing (including operaling
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subsidies) and wraparound services such as behavioral health services, employment services, and
other supportive services, are eligible responses to the public health crisis or its negative
economic impacts.

Treasury Response: The final rule maintains the eligibility of permanent supportive
housing as an enumerated use. Treasury is also clarifying that other affordable housing
developments targeted to specialized populations are also eligible, for example recovery housing
for individuals in recovery from substance use.

Public Comment: Operating Expenses: Cornmenters specifically asked that Treasury
allow the use of SLFRF funds for operating expenses of affordable housing units, as operating
subsidies are typically required to reach extremely low-income households, whose affordable
rents may be lower than the ongoing cost of operating their unit.

Treasury Response: Operating expenses for eligible affo rdable housing were an eligible
use of funds under the interim final rule and the final rule maintains this treatment. This may
include capitalized operating reserves.
Rehabilitation and repair of public housing will also be considered an eligible use of
SLFRF funds.

Public Comment: Affordable Housing Loans and Revolving Loan Funds: Some
commcntcrs requested that loans with maturities beyond the period ofperfonnance or revolving
loan funds that revolve beyond the period of performance be eligible uses of SLFRF funds if
used for affordable housing. Some commenters pointed out that for-profit developers of lowincome housing through the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) may be deterred from
accepting grants to bridge funding gaps in current LIHTC deals by the treatment of grants to forprofit entities in the calculation of eligible basis for the LIHTC.
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assistance. Commenters also requested that Treasury acknowledge that engagement directly with
nonprofit organizations in low-income communities and communities of color may allow the
recipient to better assess economic harms in these areas.
Treasury Response: Beneficiaries and Subrecipients: Treasury recognizes that many
nonprofits play important roles in their communities, and some may have experienced public
health or negative economic impacts during the pandemic. As such, under the interim final rule
and the final rule, nonprofits may be impacted by the pandemic and receive assistance as a
beneficiary, as described above, and/or be a subrecipient providing services on behalf of a
recipient. 231
Specifically, the interim final rule also allowed for, and the final rule maintains, the
ability for the recipient to transfer, e.g., via grant or contract, funds to nonprofit entities to carry
out an eligible use on behalf of the recipient. Treasury notes that recipients may award SLFRF
funds to many different types of organizations to carry out eligible uses of funds and serve
beneficiaries on behalf of a recipient government (e.g., assisting in a vaccination campaign,
operating a job training program, developing affordable housing). When a recipient provides
funds to an organization to carry out eligible uses of funds and serve beneficiaries, the
organization becomes a subrecipient. [n this case, a nonprofit need not have experienced a
negative economic impact in order to serve as a subrecipient.
In the context of SLFRF, nonprofits of all types may be subrecipients. Treasury is not
restricting the types of nonprofits that can operate as subrecipients, rather allowing recipients to
decide what form best meets the needs of their community. Therefore, a "nonprofit" that is

23 1 Note,

this response is meant to clarify the difference between nonprofits as beneficiaries and nonprofits as
subrecipients. It is not meant to limit the types of relationships that a recipient may enter into with a nonprofit as
pennitted under the Uhifonn Guidance.
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Frederick Invests ARPA Funds to Improve
Public Health , Edu cation, and Housing
Accorctmg to a County press release

These 1111tiat,ves 1v11/ lessen d1snar.rt es ,r, neaft/'1and educat,onal outcomes
in tile

commun,ty The Housing Aul'IOnl} ot the c,r. ot Freder,clr. W'II receive

$400.000 over l'otlr years
1

ro pl"[)vrde accelerated academJc programs to

SM1ems m puot,c nousmg Tne Frederte1< County Healtn care Coa//t,on w,1,
rece .ve 11p to S300,000 m funds ih•s )1:'a' to aaaress dJaDetes whJCh 1·1as recently 1<1en£ffled as a top pnoriry 1n the

,
,

Local Heaith lmproveme,,it Plan Nutf/uon pf'O{Jrams offered Dy me Fr€denck Count,v Senror Services o,wston wH,
receive a $160 000 to suvport rood ae ,vel}• ro vvlneraoie sen·ors A S250 000 r;rent 1v11 nelp semors veterans
and p(;:Qp,e w1tn <Ma011wes lO stay m the r homes t!Jroogll Habitat for Humanify s Home RepaJr Program

Commission invests $7 .8 million to support affordable housing
development
-These mvestments help to support important projects that win improve housing accessibility and home ownership
O()portunitres Ill Deschutes County " said Comm1ss,oner Patti Adair ·n Is e~ntIal that we continue to v.-ork with partners
across the region to support housing options for Deschutes County residents
Allocations induded support for:

Bend - $3 million investmem

• $2 million for Habitat for Humanity - Bend/Redmond· for the development of 20 townhomes.
• $1 million for the Hayden Homes Affordable Housing Project. which is projected to indude a m ix of 347 rental and forsale units
Ko r Community land Trust - $500,000 in, estment
• $500.000 for th,e. development of up to 10 affordable housing unils across Deschutes County.
la Pine / Sunriver - $1 Million

• $900.000 for Habitat for Humanity - La Pine/Sunriver to support the development of 20 duplexes and triplexes.
• $100.000 for Habitat for Humanity - La Pine/Sunriver to support repairs in 200 units.
Redmond • $2 M fllion

• $2 million for Housing Works for the redevelopment and expansion of Spencer Court in Redmond to preserve and
provide 60 units of multifamily housing_
• $32,000 to assist in the development of a master plan for a homeless services campus on the east side of Redmond.
Sisters - $1.3 Million

• $800.000 for Habitat for Humanity - Sisters to support the development of 10 single-family units in the Woodlands
project_
• $500,000 was reserved to support the expansion of affordable workforce housing in Sister.; in combination with
additional funds provided by the City

1

Lake Oswego City Council approves
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allocations for American Rescue
Plan Act funding
This inc tuctes spending $1 .i million for Lakeview Boulevard srreet and drainage
improve ments . S2 m!llion fo r pow er generation to support the city's 1Aater s;·stem S800

ooo

to rlabitat for Humanity. $600.000 for the nonprofit grant program and S350.000 ior a
rvtcveyi Stafford Comdor M alysis

City-county join forces with federal funds to
address homelessness
5, .\LT G.-Il' Hl"GHES
,I

- -

The Bradley County Commission and Cleveland City Cou ncil each allocated $400,000 to City Fields
to continue its efforts to rebuild or remodel 10 houses in the Blythe-Oldfield community, and
$300,000 to Habitat fo r Humanity o f Cleveland for 16 new homes in the Morelock Meadows
subdivision.
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Habitat SEO Family Testimonials

Blackwell-Collins Family- 2019 Homeowners

Partnering with Habitat for Humanity of Southeast Ohio in 2019, the Blackwell-Collins family decided to share
how the program impacted their lives during Covid-1 9.
"Having an affordable mortgage led to a better chance at financial responsibility for us. It has allowed us to plan
with our money and lessen our dependency on the food bank; we haven't been there since February. Knowing
that our mortgage is going towards something we own and can make our own has been a blessing. When we
received our stimulus checks and taxes, we paid our mortgage payments an entire year ahead. That's something
we wouldn't have been able to do without having an affordable home. Being a Habitat SEO homeowner has
given us stability in an unstable time. I don't have to worry about my kids having a safe, healthy place to school
from home due to the pandemic. We don't have to worry about moving ever again. Habitat has given my
children the childhood I had."

Iva Jones- Critical Home Repair Program 2021

"I am a 69 year old senior. I live on a very low income. I have lived here 22 years and sometimes I am no
longer able to financially do things. I had worried for the last few years about the roof. Thank heavens, I
finally thought about Habitat for Humanity of Southeast Ohio. I called and it was not long before I had a new
roofl Thank you to Habitat for Humanity of Southeast Ohio and United Way of MPM for helping me."
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Melrose Family - 2005 Homeowner
My (Lori Melrose) thoughts on the Habitat SEO Home Build program and the impact it has made in my life.
At the time that I applied to become a Habitat SEO owner, my two children (Julie 15, and Andrew 11) and I were living in
an older home that had been made into an apartment. Because it was an older home, I paid a lot each month for the
heating bills. I was a single divorced mother of two at the time. I had rented to move out of my mother's home that we
were all scrunched into and had been staying at for 3 months.
In the fall of 2004, we broke ground on our new Habitat house. My son wan ted to help, but unfortunately, was too
young to be on site. We were able to move into the first house that I had ever owned on July 17, 2005 . A day that
changed my life and the lives of my children.
I had grown up in the Glenford community and now my children were going to be able to do the same. I was able to
afford to buy a new home and get a decent car. My children have grown up and now are 28 and 32 with their own
families. They slowly moved out of our home and moved on. It has taught them the value of helping others.
I have been a Habitat owner for 16 and half years now. I love my home. I have updated the paint, decor, and furniture
over the years. I was able to add on a garage and back deck almost two years ago. And have just a few more years to
pay on it and then it will be paid off. I look forward to retiring in a few years. I love the security of knowing that my
home will be paid off when I am ready to retire.
I love giving back to Habitat whenever I can by volunteering or donating.
Lori Melrose
Habitat for Humanity of Southeast OH homeowner since 2005
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Department of Public Service
Scott Brown, Director

ORDINANCE NO. 2022- 122
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIAL
TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS AND ENTER INTO CONTRACTS FOR
CLEANING, REHABILITATION, AND MAINTENANCE OF
POT ABLE WATER SUPPLY WELLS #16 and #18.

WHEREAS, the City has an ongoing maintenance program in the well field to
assure an adequate potable water supply.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The proper City official is hereby authorized to advertise for
bids and enter into contracts for cleaning, rehabilitation, and maintenance of potable water
supply wells #16 and #18 in the City well field.
SECTION TWO: The cost for this project is estimated to be $72,500 and shall
be taken from Line Item 611.54 73 .53310.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and
after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

- - - -- - - -- , 2022

ATTEST:

Billie Corns
Clerk of Council

APPROVED: - - -- - - - -- , 2022

Donald L. Mason, Mayor

Daniel M. Vincent,
President of Council

This legislation approved as to form :

Law Directors Office

Introduced by Law Director
David J. Tarbert

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-101
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING A MORAL CLAIM
WHEREAS, on June 24, 2022, Nathan Zangmeister presented a legal claim against the City
of Zanesville for issues with his water line, on June 19, 2022, due to a water main leak near 1545
Linden Avenue (Claim 2022-20); and
WHEREAS, said claim was reviewed by the Law Director, David J. Tarbert, who
determined that the City of Zanesville was not legally liable for said claim; and
WHEREAS, the basis of said claim is set forth in Exhibit A; and
WHEREAS, Law Director, David J. Tarbert, advised the claimant that although the City
of Zanesville had no legal liability, he had a right to present a moral claim to City Council; and
WHEREAS, City Council has reviewed the claim and determined that said claim should
be paid as a moral claim.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The proper City Official is hereby authorized to pay $1,000.00 to Nathan
Zangmeister, upon a valid release being executed, and said monies shall be taken from line item
603.5470.53408.
SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.
PASSED:

- - - - - - - - - - - -, 2022

ATTEST:
BILLIE CORNS
Clerk of Council

DANIEL M. VINCENT
President of Council

APPROVED: - - - - - - - -, 2022

This Legislation Approved As To Form:

DONALD MASON
Mayor

Law Director's Office

Attachment to Ordinance 2022-1 O1

FOR CITY CLERK'S USE
CLAIM NO. 2022-20
DATE REC. /,2 .,.d/-1-2.D-1 ~

STATEMENT OF CLAIM AGAINST THE CITY OF
ZANESVILLE, omo
MAIL COMPLETED CLAJM TO: CLERK OF COUNCIL, 401 MARKET ST.,
ZANESVILLE, OHIO 43701
1.

NAME OF CLAIMANT ~N_a--"'th~an=-Z
-=--a--=n=grn=e=is=te=r_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

la. NAME OF SPOUSE IF APPLICABLE IN OWNERSHIP OF DAMAGED
PROPERTY

---------------------

Property Address 1545 Linden Avenue, Zanesville, OH 43701
3.

TELEPHONE NO .--'7-'-4~0-_5::....:8=6-..:.-5--=--7=16'-----------------

4.

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE INCIDENT UPON WHICH CLAIM IS
BASED:
B . TIME
C. WEATHElt CONDTrIONS

D. EXACT LOCATION

a0

U1.rG'J<1d

~ ~DC) ? {r\

J, ·~, ' p\e.._v-_~V\ -l--._.)~------------L,'\Je.0 A<JQ., ri)CAjw~ J1~~ '" ¼4- ,.,-f

E. NAMES & ADDRESSES OF WITNESSES: IF NONE, SO STATE

F. WAS Tiffi INCIDENT INVESTIGATED BY THE ZANESVILLE POLICE
DEPARTMENT OR OTHER CITY DEPARTMENT YES -J
NO - G. IF ANSWER TO 4-FIS "YES", PLEASE INDICATE DEPARTMENT THAT
INVESTIGATED AND/OR THE NAME OF ANY CITY EMPLOYEE WHO
MAY HA VE INVESTIGATED SAID OCCURRENCE

\rJctq bef ~r-+~

7:j h.qu.Se.,
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IN YOUR OWN WORDS, STATE IN DETAIL WHAT HAPPENED AND
HOW IT HAPPENED (CONTINUE ON BACK IF NEEDED)

5.

~

6.

?(~se- see..

~-kc,\r-e_~ d·::iLvJY"\V\+-

PROPERTY DAMAGE DETAILS
A. AMOUNTOFCLAIMFORPROPERTYDAMAGE

~llDDb

((j\(V'<>Urt cf ~~rs)

DO YOU HAVE HOMEOWNER'S INSURANCE_ _V_1v_S_ _ _ _ __

B. IF MOTOR VEIDCLE DAMAGE rs CLAIMED, STATE YEAR, MAKE AND
MODEL OF VEHICLE

OWNERS NAME AND ADDRESS

------------

STATE WHETHER OR NOT VEHICLE WAS COVERED BY COLLISION
INSURANCE
IF YES, NAME CO:MPANY AND AGENT

f:-

~
C. ATTACH ESTIMATES OR RECEIPT(S) OF COST IN CONNECTION
WITH THE ABOVE CLAIM (VEHICLE OR PROPERTY). ESTIMATES
OR RECEIPT(S) MUST BE FILED WITH CLAIM OR CLAIM
CANNOT BE PROCESSED.
7.

\\7HERE ARE YOU EMPLOYED

t/ £> r~5-e.

t)l\t,,W~ Ll(

+

HOW LONG EMPLOYED ABOVE - ' - - - 0
Vt+
eo,-r
--"---'-----------8.

'
IF CLAIM IS FOR BODILY INJURY, STATE
THE FOLLOWING:
A. NATURE OF INJURY

-'I

-----=----------------

B. WEREYOUHOSPITALIZED

)<

IF SO, WHERE

-------
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AND FOR HOW LONG

><

----------

C. WERE YOU ATTENDED BY A PHYSICIAN ( IF YES) WHO_X
_ __
PHYSICIAN ADDRESS

- -X- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

D. AMOUNT CLAIMED FOR BODILY INJURY DAMAGES - - - - - -

9.

DO YOU KNOW WHETHER OR NOT THE CITY HAD BEEN NOTIFIED
OF THE CONDITIONS OR CIRCUMSTANCES CONCERNING ANY STREET
OR SIDEWALK DEFECT WHICH MAY HAVE BEEN INVOLVED IN THE
INCIDENT WIDCH GA VE RJSE TO YOUR CLAIM PRIOR TO THE TIME OF
OCCl.JRR.ENCE OF SPJD INCIDENT, IF YES GIVE DETAILS:

THE UNDERSIGNED _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _BEING FIRST DULY
CAUTIONED AND SWORN DEPOSES AND SAYS THAT HE OR SHE HAS
READ THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE FOREGOING
STATE1IBNT OF CLAIM AND THAT TIIE SAME IS TRUE.

NL~,,k__
SIGNATUREOF'LAIMANT

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE l'v1E THIS

1u.LYUL

(J

,2022.

~;)__J/~__DAY OF

-~£~~
NOTARY PUBLIC

This document and any items submitted with it become a public record per the
Public Records Act under Revised Code 149.43.

,,

..I

. ..·.. .

.
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e

14 Buckeye Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740} 455-0631

Department of Public SeNice
Water Division

Council-Mayor Government
Donald L. Mason, Mayor

!

Scott A. Bryant, Superintendent

MEMO
TO:

Scott Brown, Public Service Director

FROM:

Scott A. Bryant, Water Superintendent

DATE:

June 28, 2022

RE:

Claim 2022-20- Nathan Zangmeister 1545 Linden Ave.

This memo addresses Claim 2022-20 - Nathan Zangmeister 1545 Linden Ave. In reviewing the
claim I find the following:
•

Records inc;icate that or. June 19, 202L the Water Division responded and complet1a=d
repairs to an emergency water main leak near the above location. Standard protocol
was employed including control shutdown, repair, flush, recharge of main line and the
issuance of a boil advisory in addition to sample collection for analysis.

•

The Water Division responded to a subsequent call for no water on June 20, 2022. An
investigation determined that customer's galvanized steel service line contained heavy
corrosion and mineral build. It is reasonable to conclude that the corrosion
accumulation became unattached from the pipe interior and form an obstruction.

•

Within the water utility industry it is common for steel pipes to cause these issues and
the only feasible solution is replacement with more appropriate pipe material. As such
the customer was so advised.

•

This office has reviewed the claim and find no negligence regarding the Water Division's
act.ions.

Please advise if you have any questions or require additional information.
Enc.:

Statement of Crew Leader
Incident File

I
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June 28, 2022

Claim for 1545 Linden Avenue
On 6/19/22 at 7:30pm we had a report of a water break. Robert Bretzinger came
in and checked and found a break on the city side of the key.
Crew shut down water main and found that the tapping saddle blew-apart causing
the break. New tapping saddle installed and hooked plastic service line to saddle.
Water was turned on and crew le ft for the day.

On 6/20/22 1545 Linden Avenue called in and reported they had no water. Crew
came back in and vac out hole in road and pulled another new plastic line to key.
PO line was a steel line and informed them that their iine needed repiaced due to
corrosion in their line. PO stated that he has had pressure problems for a few
years . Jonathan Spring informed him that if he replaced his line it would solve his
pressure probtcrr..
The water main at that address is a C900 12" and was installed approximately 5
years ago.
The water meter was also pulled and crew tried to flush po's service line out.
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14 Buckeye Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740)455-0631

Department of Public Service
Water Division

Council-Mayor Government
Donald L. Mason, Mayor

Scott A. Bryant, Superintendent

WATER ADVISORY UPDATE
LIFTED - BOIL ADVISORY - LIFTED
BOIL ADVISORY - LIFTED - June 23, 2022

Att.ention the Precautionary Boil Advisory has been lifted for the areas affected by the
emergency water main repair project on June 19, 2022.
Water samples were collected and analyzed. Results of the analysis indicated that the water
system was not contaminated and therefore should be considered safe for consumption.
For further information contact the City of Zanesville Water Division at (740) 455-0631.
This UPDATED WATER ADVISORY is issued for the locations listed below.

Linden Ave. from VanHorn Ave. to Sheridan St.
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14 Buckeye Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740) 455-0631

Department of Public Service
Water Oivfsion

Council-Mayor Government
Donald L. Mason, Mayor

Scott A. Bryant, Superintendent

WATER ADVISORY
BOIL YOUR WATER BEFORE USING OR
USE BOTTLED WATER
G- l 9 -;;/2

BOIL ADVISORY - ISSUED

Due to a water main break the Zanesville Water Division is issuing a precautionary boil alert for

·customers in tht: affected area.
' 00 NOT DRINK THE WATER WITHOUT BOILING IT FIRST. Bring all water to a boil, let it boil for
at least one minute, and let it cool before using, or use bottled Wilter. Boiled or bottled water

should be used for drinking, making ice, brushing teeth, washing dishes, and food preparation
until further notice. Bolling kills bacteria and other organisms in the water.
This precautionary boil advisory is issued only for the affected area. Water samples will be
collected once the work rs completed and servic€ restored. An additional notice will be given
when the boil advisory. is lifted.

,s

For further information contact the City of Zanesvute Water Division at {740) 455-0631
This advisory is issued only for the customers in the affected area listed below.

L~.Jt>eJ Ave.

-

8e:6,,eev YAJJ hor/J + S ber1dAN sf,
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ih!2
Pro~ection Agency

PWS Disruption of Service After Action Report

Incident Occurred: 06/19/2022 19:30
Public Water System Information
County: Muskingum
District: SEDO
Type of Public Water System: Community
Population: 29,381
Public Water System: OH6002712 - ZANESVILLE PWS
Lead Map - http:/ledocpub.epa.ohio.gov/pubticoortalNiewDocument.aspx?docid=584040

Incident
Incident Type: Type 2
D;;:i.te and Tkr1e of incident: 06/19/2022 19:30

Date and Time Incident was corrected: 06/20/2022 00: 15
Incident Description:
1546 Linde -; Ave T;:ipinr rnddle band brore . ? yearf old possible £hfo,,tivt. mater'.al or improper
installation.

Actions Taken:

Control shutdown. replace tapping saddle. Recharge system, flush , sample for Cl2 and TC .
issue BA.
This was a Type 2 incident: Print or save a copy of this report for your records.
The pressure was maintained.
How was pressure monitored:
Tank Level
Approximate number of Customers impacted: 24
Bottled water is not being provided.
Satellite water systems are not affected.
Type 2 Incident:

Page 1 of2
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Was the pit excavated to below the repair? Yes
Was the water level maintained below the area of the repair? Yes
Were critical users in the affected area notified in accordance with the contingency plan? No
Critical users in the area
Was a controlled shutdown of the affected area completed? Yes
Was the line disinfected in accordance with AWWA C651 ~ 14 section 4.11.3.27 ~
Was the line repaired? Yes
Did you test or verify the chlorine residual? Yes
Were there lead service lines or lines likely to contain lead in the area of the disruption? N/A

Reporting User jnforrnation
Name:
Scott A Bryant
Association: 740- 455-0792 - No Extension
scott.brya n1@coz.org

Notificstions
An Ohio EPA Drinking Water Disruption Incident will be created. You may be contacted by an
Ohio EPA representative to follow up with this incident. Please contact your District
Representative as soon as possible.

Contact;
Southeast District Office 740-385-8501

Page 2 of 2
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On the evening of Sunday, June 19, 2022 around 9 p.m., a City of Zanesville crew began
digging up the road and curb directly in front of my house at 1545 Linden Ave. I went out and
asked them what was going on, and they said they were repairing a cap that blew off the main
water line. They said they had to turn off the water to my residence to make ,the repairs, and
when I woke up the next morning, I was still without water. I called the Zanesville Water
Department to notify them that my water was still off, and they sent someone out to check it and
turn it back on. They were unable to restore water to my house and claimed that the line going
from the main line to my house was clogged or blocked somehow. I was then informed that I
would need a new pipe going from the main line to my house, which I was told I would need to
pay for myself. This is very problematic because prior to the workers being there I had
absolutely no issues with my water lines. Only after they did their repairs to the main line did my
water line not function. I had to hire Mike Lones to come and do an emergency installation,
which cost me $1,000. I strongly feel that the City of Zanesville should reimburse me for this
expense because prior to the maintenance on the main line, I had no issues with my water lines .
On top of that, there was a boil advisory for 4 or 5 days for all the properties on Linden Avenue
between Van Horn Avenue and Sheridan Street.
Thank you for your time.
Sincerely,
A (

I 11

----J

-

IV~~
Nathan Zang meister
740-586-5716

Trenching
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Unlimited
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Department of Public
Service Scott Brown,
Director
ORDINANCE NO.2022-103
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIAL TO
ENTER INTO A FUEL PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH CO-ALLIANCE
ENERGY FOR THE PURCHASE OF FUEL FOR VARIOUS
DEPARTMENTS OFTHECITY.
WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into an Agreement for Fuel and Related
Services with Co-Alliance Energy; and
WHEREAS, Co-Alliance Energy has delivered fuel and services to the City for
the past twenty plus years;and
WHEREAS, Co-Alliance Energy prices the fuel on the date of delivery to the
City at the state purchase price or his "rack rate", whichever is less expensive to the City; and
WHEREAS, Vehicle Maintenance routinely purchases fuel used by all
departments of the City of Zanesville. Fuel must be purchased regularly in order to maintain an
adequate inventory for refueling vehicles and equipment; and
WHEREAS, each division has approved appropriation requests within their
respective 2022 budget for purchase of their respective fuel needs through the Vehicle
Maintenance Division.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The proper City official is hereby authorized to enter into a
Fuel Purchase Agreement, with Co-Alliance Energy for the purchase of fuel for various
departments of the City of Zanesville, estimated in the amount of $850,000 per year.
SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and
after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _,2022

ORDINANCE NO.2022-103

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

APPROVED: - - - --

Donald L. Mason, Mayor

, 2022

This legislation approved as to form:

Law Director's Office

Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-104
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE ORDINANCE 2022-81
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2022-81 authorized the Public Service Director to enter into contracts
with Burgess and Niple (B&N) for construction management duties; and
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2022-81 outlined the updated contract of $19,500 but did not reflect the
total amount of the contract which is $61,000.00; and
WHEREAS, the City Auditor has requested that Ordinance 2022-81 be amended to reflect the
total contract amount.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of
Ohio; that:
SECTION ONE: Section Two of Ordinance 2022-81 currently reads as follows : The cost for the
services is estimated to be $19,500.00 and shall come from line #303-4105-56186.
SECTION TWO: Section Two of Ordinance 2022-8 l shall be amended to read as follows: The
total cost for all services pertaining to this project is estimated to be $61,000.00 and shall come from line
#303-4105-56186.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.

PASSED: - - - -- - - - - ~ 2022.

ATTEST:

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED:--

-

- --

-

-

-

-

~ 2022.

DON MASON
MAYOR

TIDS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Public Service Committee
Andrew Roberts, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2022 - 97
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A
PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT WITH OHM ADVISORS FOR FINAL DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT OF THE MARKET STREET IMPROVEMENTS.
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville selected OHM Advisors to perform the Market Street
Improvements, per Ohio Revised Code 153.65 -153.71 on February, 2022; and
WHEREAS, OHM Advisors complete a preliminary design and survey for the Market Street
Improvements; and
WHEREAS , attachment A is the contract with OHM Advisors for final design and
construction management of the Market Street Improvements; and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of
Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The Public Service Director is hereby authorized to enter into a professional
contract with OHM Advisors for the Market Street Improvements.
SECTION TWO: The cost for the services is estimated to be $88,000 and shall come from
line item 354-7951-56185 .
SECTION THREE: Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more members of
City Council, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and
approval of the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.

PASSED:

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __. 2022

ATTEST:
BILLIE CORNS,
Clerk of Council

APPROVED:

DANIEL M. VINCENT,
President of Council

---------- 2022
THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED
AS TO FORM

DONALD MASON,
Mayor

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE
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OHMAdvar.cing Communities

ARCHITECTS. ENGINEERS. PLANNERS.

July 20th, 2022
Scott Brown
Public Service Director
City of Zanesville, Ohio
401 Market Street
Room 228
Zanesville, OH 43701
Re: Streetscape at City Hall
Dear Scott,
Thank you for the opportunity to work with you and the City of Zanesville. We are pleased to
submit this proposal to provide professional design services for the reference project. This proposal
outlines our proposed scope of services, schedule, fees, and "Standard Terms and Conditions" .
OHM will work closely with you and your team to perform the following scope of work.

PROJECT AREA
The project area includes the streetscape in front of City Hall on the north and south side of Market
St. from N 4th to N 5th street. See the attached exhibit 1.

ASSUMPTIONS
The following assumptions have been made in preparing the proposed approach . These
assumptions not only shape the approach, but also the timeline and proposed cost.
1. The OHM Team will be led by Mark Bockrath (Professional Landscape Architect). Tony Slanec
(Principal) will serve as the principal in charge for OHM Advisors and will work closely with
Mark Bockrath and the OHM team to complete the enclosed scope of work.
2. The Client, the city of Zanesville, will be led by Scott Brown or an appointed staff member or
representative.
3. A topographical survey previously performed by OHM will be used for necessary utility
information and existing site features.
4. Following the approval of the streetscape concept {exhibit 1), the team will complete a site
evaluation and make layout recommendations based on relevant information collected in
the site survey. The layout recommendations will be based on the recently developed
concept as well as client input and regulatory guidelines. After the revised layout is
approved by the client, it will be used as the basis of design for the bid documents.
OHM Advisors
580 NORTH rO ciRTH STREET SUITE 610
COLUMBUS. O H 43215

T t>l 4 -lE OC•Xl
F 61-1.4 18.0 614

Attachment to Ordinance 2022-97
Zanesville Srreetscape
July 20. 2022
Page 2 of 6

5. Project delivery method: Design, Bid, Build. {General Contractor)
~ The Bid Package will be created with necessary details and drawings to achieve the
desired layout and aesthetic look.
~

The streetscape sidewalk extents will include the areas from the building face, to the
building face, or to the edge of the existing sidewalks (see exhibit 1}. The material to be
used on the sidewalks is concrete and brick. All grading will be completed by the
Landscape Architecture team. Existing underground utilities will remain in the current
locations.

,

The furnishings (streetlights, benches, trash receptacles, bollards, pots, etc.) w ill be
selected based on the client's approval and direction. Specific placement of streetlights
will be coordinated with the Electrical engineer. Specific drawings for lighting
foundations, photometrics, circuits and power centers for food trucks will be completed
by an Electrical engineering subconsultant, which is included in this proposal.

"II

Street tree plantings are anticipated. Tree selections will be urban tolerant and sized
accordingly to fit in the proposed area.

"" There are no public presentations, public engagement, or presentation graphics
anticipated, but OHM can provide an add serviced proposal if desired.
6. OHM Advisors will be the prime design consultant and will provide the professional services

of:
~

,

Roadway/ Traffic engineering
Landscape Architecture for streetscape improvements

SCOPE OF WORK

OHM Advisors will work with the City to complete the following scope of work. The final
deliverable will be documents for bidding and ultimately construction of the project.

Task 1- Design / Layout Refinement

Building on the previously approved concept, OHM will evaluate the desired improvements,
and suggest a layout that works well with existing amenities, features, and topography. The
layout refinement package will be completed digitally in ACAD and will serve as the basis of
design for the bid documents.
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Task 1 Deliverables:
~

Refined Layout Plan

Task 2 -Streetscape and Roadway Drawings

The OHM Urban Design Team will use the refined layout and roadway plan to proceed with
the streetscape document package. The design team will analyze the entire site as it relates
to hardscape, landscape, and other features. The documents shall illustrate and describe
the refinement of the scope, relationships, forms, sizes, quantities, finishes, and appearance
by means of plans, elevations, sections and construction details including specifications that
identify major materials and systems to identify quality and quantity levels. An estimate of
probable costs will also be produced at 60% and 100%. The drawings shall show essential
information which shall include but not limited to such information as:
"
~

.,
'Ill

Layout and Material Plans
Planting/ Site furnishings Plans
Pavement and Planting Details
Lighting Plans and Details

The OHM Engineering Team will prepare the plan sheets and details req uired for pavement
planing, resurfacing, replacement of curbs, and installation of new pavement markings and
traffic control signage within the project area. The plan set shall also include details for
maintenance of traffic during construction. The current Ohio Department of Transportation
specifications and standards will be used. Two submissions of the engineering plans shall be
made to give the client an opportunity to provide comments and feedba ck on the design
direction. The plan set shall show information essential for project constru ction and will
include the following sheets:
-.. Schematic Plan
,., Typical Section
"' General Notes
"'I General Summary
"'I Demolition Plan
~ Plan View
"'I Pavement Elevation Detail
., Driveway Details
"'I Traffic Control
"'I Maintenance of Traffic (up to 3 total drawing sheets)
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Task 2 Deliverables:
·"II

-.ii

Bid Drawings at 60% and 100%
Estimate of probable cost at 60% and 100%

Task 3 - Bidding Assistance

The OHM Team shall provide bidding assistance. This proposal includes services but not limited
to:
.., Assist in the construction bidding/contracting process including: distributing bidding
documents, conducting pre-bid meeting, and issuing pre-construction addenda, and
making revisions to the drawings and specifications as necessary.
"II Respond to contractor questions in writing during the bidding process .
., Attend bid opening and review all received bid packages for completeness.
-... Provide bid tabulation to the client.

Task 4 - Contract Administration

The OHM Team shall provide Contract Administration services to ensure conformity to
construction drawings and specifications. This proposal includes services but not limited to:
..,..

Submittals/RFls
• Review Contractor's submittals
• Review Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the work
• Review and respond to requests for information about t he Contract Documents.

""

Construction Progress Meetings/ Site Observation
• On-site personnel as required to provide assistance and issue any necessary
cl arifications/i nterp retations.
• Review Contractor Payment Applications
• Attend client/ contractor progress meetings as required

"II

Project Completion
• Perform a site walk through and prepare and distribute a punch list in regards to
items incomplete or incorrect as they relate to the contract documents.
• One (1) final site visit is anticipated to check conformance and complete a back
punch to verify the facility is acceptable for owner occupancy.
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~

Assumptio,ns
• The contractor will be responsible for supervision of his crews, safety precautions,
responsibility for means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of
contractor(s}, or for contractor(s) failure to comply with laws, rules, regulations,
ordinances, codes or orders applicable to contractor(s) furnishing and performing
their work.
• Construction material testing and coordination will be performed by others

ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE

Task 1: Layout Refinement ....................................... 1 month
Task 2: Streetscape and Roadway Drawings ......... 2 months
Task 3: Bidding............................................................. TBD
Task 4: Contract Administ ration ........................ TBD

FEE AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

We propose to complete task 1-4 for a lump sum not to exceed.

Task 1: Design/ Layout Refinement ................................ $ 4,000
Task 2: Streetscape and Roadway Drawings ............... $ 71,000
Task 3: Bidding Assistance................................................ $ 4,000
Task 4: Contract Administration ...................................... $ 9,000

TOTAL FEE FOR TASK 1-4

$88,000

Reimbursable expenses (mileage and printing} ............. $ 2,000
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AUTHORIZATION:
If you find this proposal to be acceptable, please provide OHM with authorization to proceed by
signing below and returning a copy of the signed proposal. We appreciate the opportunity t o serve
Zanesville and look forward to working with you on this project. Please do not hesitate to contact
me directly at (614) 474-1128 with any questions or for additional information.
Regards,

OHM Advisors
CONSULTANT

Zanesville
CLIENT
(Signature)

(Signature)

Mark Bockrath, ASLA, PLA

(Name)

(Date)

Senior Project Manager

(Title)

(Title)

